e

CITY OF GRANTVILLE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA
November 18, 2019 at 6:30 p.m.
Glanton Municipal Complex
123 Lagrange Street, Grantville, GA

Call to Order:

Invocation:

Pledge of Allegiance:

Approval of Agenda:

Approval of Minutes: Minutes October 14, 2019 & October 28, 2019

Discussion/Decision on the Removal of Sludge from the Land Application System Pond #1 Colley
Street

Discussion/Approval of MEAG Power Annual Subscription for Supplemental Power
Discussion/Approval of Georgia Power: Lighting Services Agreement — Surveillance

Discussion/Approval of Resolution No. 2019-26: No Personal Checks for Fine Payments in
Mumnicipal Court

Discussion/Approval for Mayor to sign Electric Cities of Georgia Year-End Settlement (YES) and
Contract Payment Reimbursement form Fiscal Year 2019 in the amount of $2,150.73

‘Discussion/Approval for Mayor to sign MCT Election Form - MEAG Power

Discussion/Decision on Application for Commissions & Boards: George Henry Shelnutt; Leola

(Penny) Wynn
HPC: vacancy to replace Scott Perkins term expires January 17, 2021
Planning & Zoning: no vacancy

Recommendations of the Administrative Committee

Recommendation of the Administrative Committee to Amend Section 38-1(b) of the Code of Ordinances
to employ the services of a rating specialist not less than every five years to study and review the rates then in

effect and suggest changes.

Recommendation of the Administrative Committee to Amend Section 2.02(f} of the Charter requiring
that those candidates seeking election for the office of mayor and council who receive a majority {replacing

plurality) of the votes cast shail be deemed elected.

Recommendation of the Administrative Committee to Amend Section 3.03 of the Charter in line 4 by
adding the phrase “Should the post of City Manager not be filled”; --after the words the Mayor may direct for

such purposes and before the words--he shall have....




———

Recommendation of the Administrative Committee to Amend Section 3.04 of the Charter in line 2 by

deleting the phrase “who shall be the chief managerial aide to the mayor”.

Recommendation of the Administrative Committee to Add a New Paragraph to Charter section 3.04:
The City Manager shall notify the Mayor and City Council as soon as feasible of all work being performed on City
Property save for ordinary repair and maintenance activities identifying who is performing the work and the

funding source.

Recommendation of the Administrative Committee to Amend Section 3.07 of the Charter in iine t by
adding the phrase after the word--charter, “the City Manager, if the post is filled or otherwise” and before--the

Mayor and city council... .

Recommendation of the Administrative Committee to Amend Section 3.08 of the Charter in line 2 by
adding the phrase “City Manager, if the post is filled or otherwise by the” after the words--from office at any

time by the and hefeore the words—Mayor and City Council.

Discussion/Decision on 2019 LMIG Project
1) Griffin Street Pavement Repairs and Resurfacing from Highway 29 to Main Street:
cost $310,000 Or
2) Charles Patterson Road Pavement Repairs and Resurfacing from Allen Road to the
CSX railroad crossing: cost $303,000

Discussion/Approval of Georgia Council for the Arts Vibrant Communities Grant Agreement FY20

Citizens Comments:

City Council Comments
Councilmember Alan Wacaser:
Councilmember Mark King:
Councilmember Ruby Hines:
Councilmember Jim Sells;
Mayor Doug Jewell:

City Manager Al Grieshaber Jr.:
City Attorney Mark Mitchell:

Adjournment:




.

CITY OF GRANTVILLE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES
October 28, 2019 at 6:30 p.m.
Glanton Municipal Complex
123 Lagrange Street, Grantville, GA

Call to Order: Mayor Jewell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Present: Mayor Doug Jewel], Councilmembers Alan Wacaser, Mark King, Ruby Hines and Jim Sells. City
Manager Al Grieshaber Jr., City Attorney Mark Mitchell and City Clerk Robi Higgins

Invocation: Mr. Mowery Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Jewell
Approval of Agenda: King/Hines: 4-0
Approval of Minutes:  September 23, 2019 City Council Meeting Wacaser/King: 4-0

Discussion/Approval of Film Permit Application: Big Indie Underground Inc
Sells/Hines: 4-0 '

First Reading: Ordinance No. 2019-12 to Amend Section 2-24 of the Code of Ordinances to Amend the Rules
for Regularly Scheduled Council Meetings

Discussion/Decision on Veto of Resolation No. 2019-08

Resolution No. 2019-08 to Approve United Bank for banking services for the City of Grantville was
adopted on Febraoary 25, 2019, Motion to override Veto. Sells/King: 3-1 Wacaser

Ordinance No. 2019-08 to Adopt the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget for the City of Grantville was adopted
on September 23, 2019, Items specifically vetoed by the Mayor are as follows:

General Fund Police Department 100-3210 item 542200 Vehicles: $126,000.00

Electric Fund 510-4600 item 542200 Vehicles: $25,000.00

Gas Fund 515-4700 item 542200 Vehicles: $25,000.00

Motion to override veto. King/Wacaser: 2-2 Mayor breaks the tie. Veto stands.
Discussion/Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement between Coweta County, City of Grantville and
Sheriff regarding the Detention of Inmates at the County Jail

Hines/King: 4-0

Discussion/Approval of Resolution No. 2019-27: Fiscal Year 2019 Budget Amendments
King/Sells: 4-0

Discussion/Approval of Resolution Number 2019-24 to Terminate Banking Services with BB&T
Wacaser/King: 3-1 Hines opposed

Discussion/Decision on 2019 LMIG Project Motion by King/No second.
1) Griffin Street Pavement Repairs and Resurfacing from Highway 29 to Main Street: cost
$310,000 Or

2) Charles Patterson Road Pavement Repairs and Resurfacing from Allen Road to the CSX
railroad crossing: cost $303,000.

Discussion/Approval of Service Agreement with DemandStar Corporation Hines/Wacaser: 4-0

Discussion/Approval of Resolution No. 2019-25: Declaring certain City property as Surplus Sells/Wacaser:4-0




Discussion/Approval of term for newly appointed Commissioner Mr. Donnie Clark: replaced Linda Dean
whose term ended on January 17, 2020 Hines/King: 3-0 Sells abstained

Discussion/Decision on Complaint by Selma Coty against the Grantville Historic Preservation Commission’s
decision to grant a Certificate of Appropriateness to allow a storage shed and tent on the lot located at 43
Lagrange Street, Grantville, Georgia.

Section 20-6(p) of the Code of Ordinances: (p) Appeals. Any person adversely affected by any
determination made by the commission relative to the issuance or denial of a certificate of appropriateness
may appeal such determination to the city council. Any such appeal must be filed with the city council within
15 days after the issuance of the determination...

Sells/Wacaser motion to dismiss complaint: 4-0

Discusston/Decision: on the Proposal from the Grantville Historic Preservation Commission to Amend Section
20-6(f) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grantville
Sells/Wacaser motion to deny change: 2-3 Hines, King, Mayor
King/Hines motion to Amend Section 20-6({): 2-2 Mayor in favor of amendment. City Attorney will
prepare and Ordinance for First Reading,

Discussion/Decision on Christmas Bonuses for Full Time and Part Time Employees: $500 for employees with
over 1 year of service; $250.00 for employees with less than 1 year of service (money has heen budgeted).
Sells/King: 4-0 Mayor opposed for the record.

Announcement of Holiday Schedule: City Hall closed on Thursday, November 28, 2019 and Friday,
November 29, 2019 for Thanksgiving Holidays — City Hall closed on Tuesday, December 24, 2019 and
Wednesday, December 25, 2019 for Christmas Holidays

Discussion/Decision on Rescheduling the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on Monday, November 25,
2019 to a Special Called Meeting on Monday, November 18, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. due to the Thanksgiving
Holidays Hines/King: 4-0

Discussion/Decision on Rescheduling the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on Monday, December 23,
2019 to a Special Called Meeting on Monday, December 16, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. due to the Christmas Holidays
Hines/King: 4-0

Discussion/Determination of Ad-Hoc Budget Committee —3 Council Members and 5 residents
Hines/King: 3-1 Sells opposed

Discussion/Decision on forming and appointment of volunteers to serve as Ethics Committee Board members
No action necessary. Staff will mail out letters.

Announcement of the Christmas Parade and Lighting of the Tree on November 30, 2019 at 6 p.m.
Citizens Comments: Marion Cieslik, Rodney Mowery, Connie Warren, Amy Jarrell and Selma Coty

City Council Comments

Councilmember Alan Wacaser:

Councilmember Mark King;

Councilmember Ruby Hines:

Councilmember Jim Sells:

Mayor Doug Jewell:

City Manager Al Grieshaber Jr.: Fall Festival was a super GRANDfest
City Aitorney Mark Mitchell:

Adjournment: 8:30 p.ma. Hines/King: 4-0




CITY OF GRANTVILLE
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING
MINUTES
October 14, 2019 at 6:30 p.m.
Glanton Municipal Complex
123 Lagrange Street, Grantville, GA

Call to Order: Mayor Jewell called the work session meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Present: Mayor Doug Jewell, Councilmembers; Alan Wacaser, Mark King, Ruby Hines and Jim Sells.
City Manager Al Grieshaber Jr., City Attorney Mark Mitchell and City Clerk Robi Higgins

Invocation: Mr. Mowery Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Jewell
Approval of Agenda: Hines/King: 4-0

Announcement: 2019 GMA District 4 Fall Meeting to be held Wednesday, October 23, 2019 from
11:30 a.m. — 1:00 p.m. at Histeric City Hall, 201 E. Solomon Street, Griffin, GA

Announcement: Grantfest Fall Festival Saturday, October 26, 2019 from 4:30 p.m. until 8 p.m.
Downtown Grantville

Discussion/Decision on Film Permit Application: Big Indie Underground Inc

Discussion/Decision on Amending Section 38-32 of the Code of Ordinances wherein the property
owner will only be responsible for obstructions in the service line to the City Right of Way,
Presently, the property owner is responsible for obstructions in the service line to its connection to
the City’s main line sewer.

Discussion/Decision on First Reading: Ordinance No. 2019-12 to Amend Section 2-24 of the Code
of Ordinances to Amend the Rules for Regularly Scheduled Council Meetings

Discussion/Decision on Veto of Resolution No. 2019-08. Resolution No. 2019-08 to Approve United
Bank for banking services for the City of Grantville was adopted on February 25, 2019,

Discussion/Decision on Fiscal Year 2019 Budget Amendments
Discussion/Decision on Resolution Number 2019-24 to Terminate Banking Services with BB&T

Discussion/Decision on Replacing the wide sidewalk on the South side of Main Street from Post
Street to Church Street

Discussion/Decision on 2019 LMIG Project
1) Griffin Street Pavement Repairs and Resurfacing from Highway 29 to Main Street:
cost $310,000 Or
2) Charles Patterson Road Pavement Repairs and Resurfacing from Allen Road to the
CSX railroad crossing: cost $363,000.

Discussion/Decision on Service Agreement with DemandStar Corporation




Discussion/Decision on Declaring certain City property as Surplus

Discussion/Decision on term for newly appointed Commissioner Mr. Donnie Clark: replaced Linda
Dean whose term ended on Janunary 17, 2020

Discussion/Decision on Complaint against the Grantville Historic Preservation Commission’s
decision to allow a storage shed and tent to remain on the lot located at 43 Lagrange Street,
Grantville, Georgia

Discussion/Decision on the Proposal from the Grantville Historic Preservation Commission to
Amend Section 20-6(f) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grantville

Discussion/Decision on Christmas Bonuses for Full Time and Part Time Employees: $500 for
employees with over 1 year of service; $250.00 for employees with less than 1 year of service (money
has been budgeted).

Announcement of Holiday Schedule: City Hall closed on Thursday, November 28, 2019 and
Friday, November 29, 2019 for Thanksgiving Holidays — City Hall closed on Tuesday, December 24,
2019 and Wednesday, December 25, 2019 for Christmas Holidays

Discussion/Decision on Rescheduling the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on Monday,
November 25, 2019 to a Special Called Meeting on Monday, November 18, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. due to
the Thanksgiving Holidays

Discussion/Decision on Rescheduling the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on Monday,
December 23, 2019 to a Special Called Meeting on Monday, December 16, 2019 at 6:30 p.m. due to
the Christmas Holidays

Discussion/Determination of Ad-Hoc Budget Committee — 3 Council Members and 5 residents

Discussion/Decision on forming and appointment of velunteers to serve as Ethics Committee Board
members

Announcement of the Christmas Parade and Lighting of the Tree on November 30, 2019 at 6 p.m.

Citizens Comments: Marion Cieslik, Rodney Mowery, and Connie Warren
City Council Comments

Councilmember Alan Wacaser: none

Councilmember Mark King:

Councilmember Ruby Hines:

Councilmember Jim Sells:

Mayor Doug Jewell:

City Manager Al Grieshaber Jr.: The Fall Festival was a super GRANDfest
City Attorney Mark Mitchell: none

The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m. by Mayor Jewell

Mayor
Respectfully submitted by Robi Higgins, City Clerk




REMOVAL OF SLUDGE
Land Application System Pond #1 Colley Street

Three Quotes Received:

C&M Dredging: $254,150 plus trucking fees
WBI In¢: $190,000 plus trucking fees
Hydrochempsc: $574,000 plus trucking fees

Funding Sources:
CIP Projects fully funded

Passenger Depot: $100,000
Community Revitalization Plan: $50,000

Downtown Revitalization: $75,000
Freight Depot: $100,000
Water Tank Refurbishment: $40,000

2019-2024 SPLOST
Public Buildings Repair and Renovation: $45,000

Parks, Recreation and Culture Facility Improvements: $45,000
Historic Preservation Facilities and Improvements: $45,000

Downtown Revitalization: $38,000




I;mEnﬁrnwm

To: MEAG Power Participants
From: Steve Jackson, Sr. VP and COO }5@
Date: September 27, 2019

Subject: Annual Subscription for Supplemental Power - Update

As the MEAG Power staff has continued with budget preparations, it has come to our
attention that the information provided to the Participants in the initial 2020 supplemental
subscription solicitation was incomplete.

The information did not clearly define the deficit Participant needs for supplemental
power along with the need for system planning reserves. Per the Supplemental Power
Supply Policy, the Participant’s ten year projection should identify needs for both
supplernental power and reserves. The projections provided with this letter have been
revised to address this requirement.

In addition, the nomination form has been modified as follows:

1) The products identified on the nomination form have been updated to include an
additional capacity product. This product was added in order to reflect the value
of the excess capacity held by most of the Participants that could be used for
supplemental supply.

2) For those Participants with excess resources, the nomination form has been
modified to address the option for sale of their excess as supplemental supply
and as reserves.

In order to allow time for the Participants to consider this new information, the deadline
for a reply has been extended to October 21% in order to align with any comments on the
MEAG Power preliminary budget.

Your regional manager will be in contact with you to discuss these changes and your
particular power supply needs. If you have any questions about your nomination, please
contact your regional manager, Tina Atchison at (770) 563-0586, or Curt Halstead at
(770) 563-0396.




AUTHORIZATION AGREEMENT
Year 2020 Annval Subscription
Under Supplemental Power Supply Policy
between
Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia

C‘\‘\("% g§ dngL 33?([&

(Participant)

In accordance with the MEAG Supplemental Power Supply Policy, the Undersigned Participant
hereby elects to: (all Participants must elect one option and return)

1 )( | Designate MEAG as its agent to nominate and acquire any combination of resources
to optimize their Supplemental Power Supply Requirements. Please specify agency

limitations if any, 5

(ii) Subscribe to one or more of the power supply alternatives identified in the attached
Nomination Form in specific amounts;

(iii) Acquire the necessary resources for its Supplemental Power Supply Requirements
itself;

(iv) I do not wish to make any additional purchases at this time;

or

) Nominate my excess capacity for supplemental at $24.61/kW-Yr or for reserves at

$2.88/kW-Yr at DP. Supplemental will be allocated first, then any remaining
amounts will be allocated to reserves. Please specify amount and limitations if any,

By executing this Authorization Agreement, Participant understands that MEAG will aggregate
all MEAG Participant nominations and attempt to contract for the total amount of Participant
supplemental power supply requirements nominated under this Annual Subscription, Participant
also understands that MEAG will purchase the capacity necessary to ensure that system planning
reserve requirements are met and assign this capacity for one or more years to those Participants
deemed capacity deficient. Participant agrees that these reserve capacity purchases may be made
at “market” prices from other Participants.

Participant agrees to and accepts the above nomination, this day of , 2019,

Participant: Ci{xt) Q-C em’l“-)\lde

By:

AR

C : T
Mayor or other authorized representative

Page 1 of 2
MEAGFORM091719




e i e e T 0 i el e e SR e L B Sie e e i

Supplemental Supply Nomination Form

Participant
Forecast . Participant
Option/Capacity Price| Forecast Encrgy Price m:mmoawmow
Product ($/kW-Yr) @ DP ($/MWh) @ DP (MW) @ DP Comments
Bud High Bud High
(Energy Products
Short Term (Imo-364dy) | oo f ol |
3 Month 5x16 (Jun-Aug) Firm Liquidated Damages, Low risk
3 Month 7x24 (Jun-Aug) Firm Liquidated Damages, Low risk
Medium Term (1 - 5 vr) e : :
Annual 5x16 {2020) = i
Annual 7x24 (2020) Firm Liquidated Damages, Low risk
Capacity Products
Purchased from other Participant or from off-
Reserve Capacity 2.88 3.31 system at no more than the high price
Purchased from other Participant or from off-
Supplemental Capacity (2020) 24.61 28.30

system at no more than the high price

C:AUsersicitv.manager\AppDataiLocalMicrosoft\ WindawsiINetCache'Content Outlook\SE2CRJ3TWForm 091719 Rage 2 of 2

R

16/11/2000-11:16 AM

.




_Lighting Services Agreement — Surveillance ;ﬁ%ﬁ‘_ Georgia Power

" Sovernmental
Customer Legal Name  City of Grantville DBA
Service Address 123 Lagrange St, Grantville, GA 30220 County Cowetta
Mailing Address Same as ahove
Email - Tel# 770-583-2289 . Alt Tel #
Tax D & Business Description City Government

Existing Customer? Yes (] No[J If Yes, which Account Number:

Selected Components

Action Qty Wattage Description

Ins 1 12 Custom Surveillance System

Service Cost($) | Regulated Cost($)* | Monthly Cost($) *
$333.34 $24.80 $358.14

Term (Months) 1

* The actual Regulated Cost will be calculated using the tariffs approved by Geargia Public Service Commission at the time of billing. This estimate is based on Summer
Rates in effect at the time of this proposal. Excludes applicable sales taxes.
** The actual sales tax will be calculated based an the taxes in effect at the time for the premise location.

Project Notes: Install 2- Flock Safety LPR Cameras

Customer agrees to this Lighting Services Agreement with Georgia Power Company under the attached terms and conditions and authorizes all
actions noted on this agreement. Customer also agrees to allow removal of existing GPC assets, andior Customer Owned assets as needed to

provide the Service.

Type Customer Tariff Content Pre-Payment ($) | Estimated Taxes (§) ™ 7 ‘Tota'l ($)*~
NESC Gov GenSvc | Cloud Storage $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Customer rapresents that the individual signing this Agreement on its behalf has authority to do so.
Customer Authorization _ Georgia Power Authorization
| Signature: Signature:
Print Name: Print Name: Nealy Scott
Print Title: : Print Title: Account Executive
Date: ' Date:

{FL Gov GPC} Page 1of3 032112010




TERMS and CONDITIONS (Surveillance —Governmental) {FL Gov GPC)

o

P

1.

10,

Agreement Scope. This Lighting and Smart Servicas Agreement for surveillance ("Agreement”) establishes the terms and conditions under which Georgla Power
Company (“GPC") will provide surveillance and related service (the “Service™) to the customer identified on Page 1 (“Customer”), The Service will be provided to
Customer at the Service Address shown on Page 1 (the “Premises”). GPC may install, update, modify, or replace any pole, base, wiring, conduit, camera, fixiure, conirol,
equipment, devics, or related item at the Premises (collectively, “GPC Assets”) as necessary or convenient to address regulatory requirements or for other reasons
related to the Service or use of GPC Assets. The Service may allow Cuslomer to refrisve, pracess, or access information, which may include photographs, video
recordings, audio recordings, or other content obtained from the Premises (“Content” ). The Service does not include any Content monitoring by GRPC.

intent and Title, This Agreament concems GPC's provisian of the Service to Customer and is rot a sale, lease, or licansing of goods, equipment, propetly, or assets of
any kind. GPC retains the sole and exclusive right, title, and interest in and to all GPC Assets and GPC may remove GPC Assets upon Agreement termination. GPC
makss no represantation or warranty regarding treatment of this ransaction by the Internat Revenue Service or the status of this transaction under any federal or state
tax law. Customer enters into this Agreement in sole reliance upon Customer's own advisors.

Term and Termination. The initial Agreement term is stated on Page 1, calculated from the date of the first monthly bill. After the initial term, this Agreement automatically
renews on a month-to-month basis until terminated by efther patty by providing written notice of intent to terminate to the other paity {in accordance with the notice
provisions of the Miscellanecus section below) at least 30 days before the desired termination date. The initial term and any ranewal term are collectively the “Term.”
GPC may suspend or terminate the Service without advance nofice if GPC has reason to belisve the Service is being used for an unlawful or unsthical purpese.

Payment. GPC will invoice Customer per the financial terms stated on Page 1. The Service Cost will renew at the cost shown on Page 1, but the Regulated Cost will be
determined by the tariffs approved by Georgla Public Service Commission at the time of billing. Customer agreas to pay the amount bliled by the inveice due date. If a
balance is outstanding past the due date, Customer acknowledges that GPC may require Customer to pay a depasit in order to continue the Service. If applicable,
Customer must provide a copy of its Georgia sales tax exemption certificate. Customer must pay costs associated with any Customer-initiated change after the date of
this Agreament.

Premisas Activity. Customer grants to GPC and its contractars and repressntatives the right and license to enter the Premises and to perform any activity related to the
Service or GPC's use of the GPC Assets, including the right to: (i)nstall and connect GPC Assets, to provids the Service, or to provide or install any other service; {ii)
remove or disconnect pre-existing equipment where nacessary or convenient; (iii) inspect, maintain, test, replace, repair, disconnect, or remave GPC Assets; (iv) provide
electric energy to the GPC Assets; (v) install additional equipment or devices on GPC Assets; or (vi) conduct any other activity reasonably related to the Servics or GPG
Assets (items (i) — (vi) collectively, “GPC Activity”). Customer represents or warrants that it has the right to permit GPC to provide the Service and fo perform the GPC
Activity upon the Premises and, ¥ applicable, has obtained exprass authority and required parmission from all Premises owners, and any other person or antity with rights
in the Premises, to enter into this Agreement and to authorize the GPC Activity and the Service.

Installation. Customer recognizes the Service requires installation of GPC Assets. Customer warrants ar covenants that: (i) the Premises’ final grade will vary no more
than 6 inches from the grade existing at the time of installation; and (i) applicable and required for proper installation, Premises property lines will be clearly marked
before installation,

a. Customer-Provided Equipment. GPC, at its discretion, may connest GPC Assets to or otherwise uss Customer-provided equipment, including wiring, servers, or
similar equipment {collectively, “CPE") at the Premises to provide the Service. GPC Is not responsible for repair or replacement of any CPE and GPC is not
responsible for any damage CPE may cause to the Service or GPC Assets. Customer bears the exclusive risk of any damage resulting from any impaired functionality
of the Service or damage to GPC Assefs calised by CPE.

b.  Underground Facflity/Obstruction Not Subject to Dlg Law. Because GPC Activity may require excavation not subject to tha Georgia Utility Facility Protection Act

(0.C.G.A. §§25-9-1 — 25-0-13) (“Dig Law"}, Customer must mark any private utility or facllity {e.g., gasiwater/sewsr line; Irrigation facility; low voltage
data/communication line) or other underground obstruction at the Premises that is not subject to the Dig Law. If GPC causes or incurs damage due fo
Customer's failure to mark a private facility or obstruction before GPC commences GPC Activity, Customer is responsible for all damages and any resuliing delay.

¢.  Unforeseen Condition. The estimated charges shown on Page 1 include no alfowance for subsurface rock, wetland, underground stream, buried waste, unsuitable
sofl, underground obstruction, archeological artifact, burial ground, threatensd or endangered species, hazardous substance, or similar condition ("Unforsseen
Condition”). If GPC encounters an Unforeseen Condition, GPC, in its scle discretion, may stop all GPC Aclivity until Customer either remedies the condition or
agrees to reimburse all GPC costs arising from the condition. Customer is responsible for all costs of modification or change io GPC Assets requesled by Customer
or dictated by an Unforeseen Condition or circumstance outsida GPC's control. i

GPC Asset Protection and Damage. During the Term, in the event of any work or digging near GPC Assets, Gustomer (or any person or entity working on Customer's
behalf) must: (i) provide notices and locate requests to the Geargia Utilitles Protection Certar {“UPG") and ather utility owners ar cperators as required by the then-current
Dig Law; (i1} coordinate with the UPC and any utility facility owner or oparator as required by the Dig Law; and (iii) comply with the High-voitage Safety Act {0.C.G.A. §§46-
3-30 - 46-3-40), As betwasn Customer and GPC, Customer is responsible far any damage arising from failure to comply with applicable law or far damage to GPG Assets
caused by anyone other than GPC or a GPC contractor.or repressntative.

Pole Aftachments. Nothing in this Agrasment conveys to Customer any right to attach or affix anything 1o any GPC Asset. Gustomer agrees that it will not, and will not
permit others to, reamange, disconnect, remove, relocate, repair, alter, tamper with, or otherwise interfere with any GPC Asset. If Customer desires to attach or affix
anything fo GPC Assets (including any CPE), Customer must first obtain GPC's written consent. Customer must call GPC Lighting and Smart Services business unit at
1-888-655-5888 to obtain consent,

System. GPC Assels access and use certain proprietary or third-party hardware, application servicas, compenents, embeddad software, or firmware (callectively,
“8ystem”) In connection with the Service. System comparients remain the sole property of the owner. GPC grants Customer a licsnse to access and use the System as
specified in, and permitted by, this Agreement during the Term. Customer may not: {i) decomplle or reverse engineer the System or take any other action to discover ihe
source code or underlying idea or algarithm of any component; {ii} copy any System product or software; (fi} post, publish, or create a derivative work based on the
System; or {iv} remove from the System any copyright notice, trade or service mark, brand name, or the fike. Throughout the Term, Customer’s use of the System is
subject to, and Customer expressly agrees to abide by, the Flock Group Inc. (“Flock”) Customer $aa$S terms and conditions {“Flock Terms”} attached as
Exhibit A and incorporated by this reference.

Infernet Connectivity and Content Access. As part of the Sarvics, and unless otherwise noted, GPC or its contractor will provide an infernet connection to link the
camera to the System for upload of Content or other data transfers, which intsmet connection is not available for any other use. The Service does not include any
device necessary for Customer's access to Gontent. Customer may access the Content and the System using Customer's own internet-connected device(s) and
Customer's ewn internet connection (both of which are CPE under this Agreement). The Service uses internst bandwidth, the amount of which may vary based upon
Customer's use of the Service. GPC is not responsible for any degradation of perfermance or function of other internet-connectad devices dus to infernst bandwidth used
by Customer's access of the Service. Customer acknowledges that when either internet connection s not operating or is ctherwise unavailable for any reason,
including network outage, cable cut, network maintenance, network congestion, equipment failure, weathar, or a force majeure event, the Service, the internat-
dependent components of the Service, or the transmission of Content to a remote storage site will not function. Transmisslon of a wireless signal can be further
affected by radio signal strength or availability at the Premises. Customer must immediately notify Flock (as required by Section 1.2 of the Flock Terms) of any

- System failure or malfunction, including any Internet or other transmission failure,

{FL Gov GPC) Page 2 of 3 oxz1i2019




://_\

1.

13.

14.

18.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Content Storage. Content will ither be stored in the cloud or on & local storage device provided by GPC and used by Customer for receipt and storage of the digital
feed of Content. Each such local slorage device is part of GPC Assets. Content will be available ordy until cverwritten by the applicable storage device.

Interruption of Service. Customer understands Service and System are provided on an “as is” and “as available” basis and may be interrupted. If thera is a
Service interruption, Customer must notify GPC. Customer acknowledges and agrees that GPC o its contractors or representatives may temporarily access Content to
resolve any such interruption or as necessary to otherwise confirm operability of the System and Service. In the event of a Service interruption due to GPC Asset equipment
failure, GPC wilt install replacement tachnology sufficient to provide equivalent Service. Customer can netify GPC by ¢aliing 1-888-655-5888.

Content and Legal Compliance. Customer acknowlsdges that it may use the Service and Content only for a lawful purpose, and that related surveillance squipment,
including cameras, may be located only in areas where parmitted by law and where persons have no reasonable expectation of privacy. Customer expressly agrees that
it is subject to, and warrants or covenants that it will comply with, any applicable law, rute, or ragulation regarding Custemer’s use of the Service or Content, including any
law pertaining to surveillance equipment location, wiretapping, eavesdropping, privacy, voyeurism, child porography, or similar law. Customer acknowledges that its use
of the Service or Content is at Customer's own risk. Customer'is solely responsible for any picture, sound, audie, video, or other data that Customer, or anyone Customer
should reasanably expect o use or have access to the Service or,Content, uploads, downleads, monitors, records, stores, posts, emails, transmits, discloses, or otherwise
makes available using GPC Assets or the Service. ) .

To the extent requirad by applicable law, rule, or regulation (public or private), Customer agrees to inform any third party entering the Premises that the Premises may be
monitored or recorded. Customer is solely responsible, and GPC has no liabitity whatsoever, for any decision or action regarding such notice, including notice content,
mode, means, or placement, :

Customer is the owner of Content and is solely responsible for: {i) Content substance; (if) Customer's conduct with respect fo Content; and (jif) any consequence of
accessing, retrieving, or using Content. In connection with Cantent, Customar represents, warrants, or covenanis that: (a} Customer owns or has any necessary license,
right, consent, or permission to enable use of Content as contemplated by this Agreement; and (b) Customer's use or making avaifable of Cantent does not and will not:
{1}infringe, violate, or misappropriate ary legal, capyright, trademark, patent, trade secret, moral, privacy, publicity, or other intellectual property or proprietary right of any
third party; or (2) slander, defame, fibel, or invade the right of privacy, publicity, or other property right of any other person.

4

Custamer acknowledges and agrees that Content may be recsived or stored on computer servers maintained by GPC or third parties. Customer congents and agrees,
and grants to GPG a perpetual, royalty-free, irmsvacable license, that GPC may store, or cause to be stared, Content for such time as is determinad at GPC’s sole and
exciusive discretion. Content may be stored in a location that is shared with one of more third parties. Customer expressly agrees that GPC may disclose Content to third
parties, with or withoui notice to Customer: (i} in connection with any law enforcement investigation or proceeding; (i) pursuant to a court order or subpoana; or {iil) as
allowed or required by applicable law. Customer consents to any such disclosure.

Disclaimer; Limitation of Liability; Damages. GPC makes no covenant, warranty, or representation of any kind (including warranty of fitnass for a particular
purpose, merchantability, or noninfringemant) regarding the Service, GPC Assets, or any GPC Activity. Customer waives any right to consequential, special,
indirect, troble, exemplary, incidental, punitive, loss of business reputation, or foss of use (Including loss of revenue, profits, or capital costs) damages in
connection with the Service, GPC Assats, or this Agreement, or arising from damage, hindrance, or delay involving the Service, GPC Assels, or this Agreement,
whether or nof reasonable, foresseable, contemplated, or avoidable. To the extent GPG is liable under this Agreement, the liability of GPC is expressly limited to: (i)
with respect to the Service purchased by Customer, the annual amount paid by Customer for the Service; or (ii) with respect to any other liabiity, to proven direct damages
in an-amount not to excead $100.00. Customer understands the Service is not intended to prevent any toss by burglary, holdup, fire, or otherwise, and that no GPC Asset,
CPE, or Service is aror-free or without interruption, which interruption could occur from faulty equipment, faulty fransmission, power outage, weather, or the tampering
with or destruction of GPC Assets or CPE. GPC is not required to supply Service to Customer during any such intetruption. GPC does not guarantee the security of the
System, GPC Assets, or CPE and is not responsible if any software coda entering the CPE disrupts, disables, or self-limits the System or CPE. GPC is not responsible
for maintaining the confidentiality, integrity, or security (physical or electronic) of Content. To the greatest extent allowed by applicable law, GPC is neither responsible for
proiecting Content against unauthorized access, disclosure, or use ror liable for any unauthorized access, disclosure, or use of Content. Customer is solely responsible
for safety of the Premises and agrees that GPC has rio obligation o ensure safely of the Premises and that GPC has no liability for any persanal injury or real ar personal
praperty damage, loss, or negative impact to Gustomer that occurs at the Premises.

Not Insurance Policy. Customer agrees and understands that; (i) GPC is not an insurer, nor is this Agreement intended to be an insurance policy or substitute for an
insurance policy; (il} insurance, if any, will be obtained by Customer or its customers or tenants; (iii) charges by GPC under this Agreemsnt are based salsly upon the
limited value of the Service and are unrelated to the value of the Premises or the property located on the Premises; (iv) the amounts payable by Customer are not sufficient
to warrant GPC assuming any risk of consequential, collateral, incidental, or other damages to Customer or its customers or tenants dua to: {a) the Service; (b) any
deficiency, defect, nadequacy, or disruption of the Service; or {c) GPC’s or its contractors’ negligence or failure to perform; (v} Customer does nat intend this Agreement
to impose liability on GPC except within the limitations of this Agreement; and (vi) Customer agrees that GPC will not be liable for loss or damage due, directly orindirectly,
to any accurrence or consequence from occurrence that the Service may be desired to detect.

Risk Allocation. Each party will be responsible for its own acts and the resulis of its acte.

Georala Sscurlty, Immligration, and Compliance Act. Customeris a “public employer” as defined by O.C.G.A. § 13-10-81 and this is a contract for physical performance
of services in Georgia. Compliance with O.C.G.A, § 13-10-91 is a condition of this Agreement and is mandatory. GPC will provide to Customer a contractor’s affidavit as
required by O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91. if GPC employs or contracts with any subeontracior in connection with this Agreement, GPC alse will secure from each subcontractor
an affidavit attesting to compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13-10-91.

Default. Customer is in default if Customer: {i) does not pay the entire amount owed within 45 days after the due date; (i} terminates this Agresment without proper notice
and prior 1o the end of the then-current Term; or (i) breaches any matarial term, warranty, covenant, or representation of this Agreement. GPG's waiver of a past default
will not waive any other default. if a defauit ocours, GPC may: (a) immediately termirate this Agreement; (b) remove any GPC Asset from the Premises; or (¢) seek any
available remedy provided by law, including the right to collect any past due amount, late fees, or any amount due for the Service during the remaining Term.

Miscsllaneous. This Agreement contains the parties’ entire agreement relating to the Service, GPC Assets, and GPC Activity and replaces any prior agreement, written
or oral. Subject to applicable law, GPC may madify the terms of this Agresment by providing 30 days’ prior written notice to Custemer of such madification. If Customer
uses the Service or makes any payment to use the Service on or after the modification effective date, Customer accepis the modification. GPC's address for notice is
1780 Montreal Circle, Tucker, GA 30084-8801; Gustomer's address for notice is stated on Page 1. Either party may update administrative or contact infarmation {s.g.,
address, phone, website) at any time by wriiten notica to the other, Gustomer will not assign, in whele or in part, this Agreement or any right or obligation it has under this
Agreement; any such assignment without GPC's prior written consent will be vaid and of no effect. In this Agreement: {i) “include(ing)” means “include, but are not fimitad
to” ar “including, without limitation™; (i} “or" means “either or both" ("Aor B” means "A or B or both Aand B"); (il) “e.g.” means “for example, including, withaut limitation”;
and {iv) “written” or “in writing” includes email communication, absent express statement otherwise, Georgia law governs this Agreement. If a courtrules an Agreement °
provision uneniorceable fo any extent, the rest of that provision and ail other provisions remain effective. .

{FL Gav GPC) ) Page 3 of 3 0312172010




EXHIBIT A - FLOCK GROUP INC. CUSTOMER SAAS TERMS AND CONDITIONS

These SaaS Temms and Conditions {the "SaaS Terms") apply to Customer's use of the Flock Services (as defined below)} provided by Flock Group Ine. with a place of business

.-at 2588 Winslow Drive, Allarda, GA 30305 (‘Flack™) pursuant to that Lighting and Smart Services Agreement for Surveillance between Customer and Geargia Power Company

¢ “aster Agreement’). These SaaS Terms include and incorporate the Master Agresment, and any defined terms used In these SaaS Terms that are not defined within will
/& the meanings set forth in the Master Agresment. ’

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

22

.23

—_

3.1

32

3.3

P

SERVICES AND SUPPORT

Subject to these SaaS Terms, Flock will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide Customer access to the platform for viewing video footage (the “Recordings”),
support services, and other servicas set forth herein (collectively, the ‘Flock Services®). The Recordings will be available far Customer to access for 30 days.
Customer may be required to sign up for an account, and selact a password and user name (*Flock User [D7).

Subject 1o the terms hereof, Fiack will provida Customer with reasenabla technical and remote support and maintenance services (“Support Services”) by email at
hello@flocksafety.com or phone at 1-866-801-1781, Flock will use commercially reasonable sfforts 1o respond to requests for support.

Customer may not select as its Flock User ID a name that Customer does not have the right to use, or ancther person’s name with the intent to impersonate that
person. Customer may not transfer its account to anyone else without prior writien permission of Company or Flock. Customer will not share its account or password
with anyone, and must protect the security of its account and password. Customer is respensible for any activity associated with its account.

References to the "Unit” herein means cameras together with Embedded Software {defined balow), while references to “Hardware” mean such cameras alone,
excluding any software or firmware of any kind,

RESTRICTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Customer will not, directly orindirectly: reverse enginger, decompile, disassemble or otherwise attempt fo discover the source code, object eade or underlying structure,
ideas, know-how or algarithms relevant to the Flock Services, certain software embedded on the Hardware by Flock (“Embedded Software”), or any cther software
or documentation or data related to the Flock Services (callectively, “Software”) {except that such prohibition shall not apply to the extent applicable law prohibits sugh
restriction); modify, translate, or create derivative warks based on the Flock Services, Hardwars or any Softwars (except to the extant exprassly permitied by Flock or
authorized within the Flack Services); use the Flock Services, Hardware or any Scftware for timesharing or service bureau purposes or otherwise for the banefit of a
third party; or remove any praprietary notices or iabels.

Further, Customer may not remove ar export from the United States or allow the export or re-export of the Flock Services, Hardware, Software ar anything related
thereto, or any direct product theveof in viclation of any restrictions, laws or regulations of the United States Dapariment of Commerce, the United States Dapariment
of Treasury Office of Foreign Assets Controt, or any other United States or foreign agency or authority. As defined in FAR section 2,101, the Software and
dogumentation are “commercial items” and according to DFAR section 252.2277014(a)(1) and (5} are deemed to be “commercial computer software” and “commerciat
computer software documentation.” Consistent with DFAR section 227.7202 and FAR section 12.212, any use, modification, reproduction, release, performance,
display, or disclosure of such commercial software or commercial software documentation by the U.S. Government will be governed salely by the terms of these Saa§
Terms and wilt be prohibited except to the extent expressly pemmitted by the terms of these Saa$ Terms.

Customer represents, covenaris, and warrants that Customer will use the Flock Services only in compliance with these SaaS Terms and all applicable laws and
regulations, including but not limited to any laws relating to the recarding or sharing of video or audio content. Customer hereby agrees to Indemnify and hold harmless
Flack against any damages, losses, llabiiities, settlements and expenses {including without limitation costs and attorneys’ fees) in connection with any claim or action
that arises from an alleged violation of the foregoing or otherwise from Customer’s use of the Flock Services, including any claim that such actions violate any applicabie
law or third party right. Althaugh Fiock has no obligation to monitor Customer's use of the Flock Services, Flock may do so and may prohibit any use of the Flock
Services it believes may be (or alleged to be) in violation of the foregoing.

CONFIDENTIALITY; PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

Each party (the “Receiving Party”) understands that the other party {the “Disclosing Party”) has disclosed or may disclose business, technical er financial information
relating to the Disclosing Party's business (hereinafter referred to as “Propristary Information” of the Disclosing Party). Proprietary Information of Fiock includes non-
public information regarding features, functionality and performance of the Flock Services. Proprietary Information of Customer includes non-public daia provided by
Customer to Flock or collacted by Flock via the Unit, including the Recardings, to enable the provision of the Flock Services, which includes but is not limited to
geolocation information and environmental data collected by sensors built inte the Units {“Customer Data”). The Receiving Party agrees: (i) to take the same securify
pracaufions io protect against disclosure or unauthorized use of such Proprietary Information that the party takes with its own propristary information, but in no svent
will a party apply less than reasonable precautions to protect such Proprietary Information, and {il) not to use (except in performance of the Flock Services or as
otherwise permitted herein) or divulge to any third person any such Proprietary Information, Flock’s use of the Propristary Information may include processing the
Propristary Information to send Customer alerts, such as when a car exits Customer's neighborhood, or to analyze the data collected to identify motion or other events,
The Disclosing Party agrees that the foregoing shalf not appfy with respect to any information that the Receiving Party can document (a) is or bacomes generally
available to the public, or (b) was in its possession or knawn by it prior to receipt from the Disclosing Party, or (¢} was rightfully disclosed to it without restriction by a
third party, or (d) was independently developed without use of any Proprietary Information of the Disclosing Party. Nothing in these SaaS Temms will prevent the
Recelving Party from disclosing the Proprietary Information pursuant to any judicial or govemmental order, provided that the Receiving Party gives the Disclosing Party
reasonable prior notice of such disclosure to contest such order. For clarity, Flock may access, use, preserve and/or disclose the Recordings to law enfercement
authorities, govemment officials, and/or third parties, if legally required to do so or if Flock hes a goad faith belief that such access, use, preservation or disclosure is
reasonably necessary to: (a) comply with a legal process or requast; (b) enfarce these SaaS Terms, including investigation of any potential vielation thereof; (c) detect,
pravent or otherwise address securily, fraud or technical issues; ar {d) protect the rights, praparty or safety of Flock, its users, a third parly, or the pubiic as required or
permiited by law, including respond to an emergency situation. Flock may store deleted Recordings in order to comply with certain legal obligations, but such retained
Recordings will not be retrievable without a valid court order,

Customer shall own all right, title and interest in and to the Customer Data. Flock shall own and retain all right, title and interest in and to (a) the Flock Services and
Softwars, all improvements, enhancements or modifications thereto, (b) any software, applications, invertions or other technology developed In connection with
Implementation services or remote services, and (c) all intellectual properiy rights related to any of the foregoing. Company will own and retain all right, title and interest
in and to the Hardware used by Customer hereunder. If Customer provides any suggestions, ideas, enhancement requests, feedback, recommendations or other
information relating to the subject matter hereunder, Customer heraby assigns (and will cause its agents and representatives to assign) to Flack all right, title and
interast {including intellectual property rights) with respect to or resulting fram any of the foregoing. ‘

Subject to these SaaS Terms, including payment by Company of the applicable license fees, Flock grants Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-
sublicensable, revocable right to use and access the Flock Services. These SaaS Terms are a license, not a sale, to the Flock Services and does not convey to
Customer any rights of ownership in or related to the Software or Units. For clarity, these S=a8 Terms also do not convey to Customer any rights of ownership in or
related to the Hardware.

Notwithstanding anything in these SaaS Temms to the contrary, Flock shall have the right to collect and analyze data and other information relating to the provision, use
and performance of varlous aspects of the Software, Flock Services and related systems and technelogies {Including, without fimitation, information congerning

(G IS Gov GPC) Page 10of2 3212018




5.1

5.2

53

5.4

8.1

8.2

Customer Data and data derlved therefrom). Customer acknowledges that Flock will be compiling anonymized and aggregated data based on Customer Data input
into the Software and Flock Services (the “Aggregated Data”). Customer hereby grants Flock a non-exclusive, worldwide, perpetual, royalty-free right and license
{during and after the term hereof} to (i) use and distribute such Aggregated Data to improve and enhance the Flock Services and for other marketing, development,
diagrastic and corrective purposes in connection with the Flock Services and ather Flock offerings, and (i) disclose the Cusiemer Data {inclusive of any Recordings)
ta third party service providers to enable law enforcemant monitoring against law enforcement hotlists.

TERM AND TERMINATION
Subject to earlier termination as provided below, these SaaS Torms are for the term as specified in the Master Agreement.

tn the event of any material breach of these SaaS Terms, the non-breaching party may terminate these SaaS Terms prior to the end of the Term by giving thirty (30)
days prior written notice to the breaching party; provided, however, that these Saa$ Terms will not terminaie if the breaching party has cured the breach prigr fo the
expiration of such thirty-day perfod. Upon termination for Flock's breach, Customer will be entitled to & pro-rata portion of the pre-paid fees (other than one-time fees
or other non-refundable fees indicated In an order) for FIock@eNices not recelved.

Upon any termination, Flock will delete alt Customer Data and. Customer's right to access or use any Sofiware, and all licenses granted by Flock hereunder will
immediately cease.

The following sections of this Exhibit A will survive termination: 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 5 {with respect to any accrued rights to payment) and 6, and 7.
DISCLAIMER

Flock shall use reasonable efforts consistent with prevailing industry standards to maintain the Flock Services in a manner which minimizes errors and interruptions
in the Flock Services and shall perform the Flock Services in.a professional and workmanlike manner. FLOCK DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE FLOCK SERVICES
WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE; NOR DOES IT MAKE ANY WARRANTY AS TO THE RESULTS THAT MAY BE OBTAINED FROM USE OF THE
FLOCK SERVICES. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION, THE FLOCK SERVICES AND IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES ARE PROVIDED
“AS 18" AND FLOCK DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPCOSE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT,

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY, EXCEPT FOR BODILY INJURY OF A PERSON, FLOCK AND ITS SUPPLIERS (INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO ALL HARDWARE AND TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIERS), OFFICERS, AFFILIATES, REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS, RESELLERS, AND
EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE WiTH RESPECT TO ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF THESE SAAS TERMS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS
RELATED THERETO UNDER ANY CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHER THEORY: {A) FOR ERROR OR INTERRUPTION OF USE OR FOR
LOSS OR INAGCURACY OR CORRUPTION OF DATA OR COST OF PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, SERVICES OR TECHNOLOGY OR LOSS OF
BUSINESS; (B} FOR ANY INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES; (C) FOR ANY MATTER BEYOND FLOCK'S
REASONABLE CONTROL; OR (D} FOR ANY AMOUNTS THAT, TOGETHER WITH AMOUNTS ASSQCIATED WITH ALL OTHER CLAIMS, EXCEED THE FEES
PAID AND/OR PAYABLE BY CUSTOMER TO FLOCK OR ITS RESELLER FOR THE FLOCK SERVICES UNDER THESE SAAS TERMS IN THE 12 MONTHS PRIOR
TO THE ACT THAT GAVE RISE TO THE LIABILITY, IN EACH CASE, WHETHER OR NOT FLOCK HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES. IN THE EVENT OF AN EMERGENCY, CUSTOMER SHOULD CONTACT 911 AND SHOULD NOT RELY ON THE FLOCK SERVICES.

MISCELLANEOUS

Publicity. Customer grants Flock the right to verbally disclose that Customer uses Flock's services and solutions. Custamer may opt out of such publicity by notifying

Flock at ept-cut-apc@ilocksafely.com .

Beneficiary. Customer acknowledges and agrees that Flock is a third-party beneficiary under the Master Agreement and may enfarce all terms applicable to Flock
thereunder.

{G I3 Gov GPC} Page 2 of 2 00272017




THE CITY OF GRANTVILLE, GEORGIA

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-26
BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRANTVILLE
DECLARING NO PERSONAL CHECKS NOR BUSINESS CHECKS FOR
FINE PAYMENTS IN MUNICIPAL COURT

WHEREAS, the acceptance of personal checks and business checks for fine
payments in Municipal Court increases the liability for returned checks due to insufficient
funds; and

WHEREAS, the acceptance of personal checks and business checks for fine
payments in Municipal Courts increases liability, personnel costs and other costs to the
payor; and

WHEREAS, the payment of fine payments in Municipal Court by cash, cashier
checks or money orders payable to the City of Grantville or via our Government
Windows, our on-line payment portal by credit card with applicable surcharges applied
will provide a more reliable and efficient method of payment of fines in Municipal Court.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF GRANTVILLE, GEORGIA, AS FOLLOWS:

That NO personal checks or business checks will be accepted for the payment of
fines in Municipal Court.

This Resolution is passed this 18® day of November, 2019.

Doug Jewell, Mayor

ATTEST

Robi Higgins, City Clerk




M

ECG -~ Year-End Settiement (YES) and Contract Payment Reimbursement Form
Fiscal Year 2019 (FY19)

The FY19 Year-End Settlement refund from Electric Cities of Georgia (ECG) applicable to the City of
Grantville is $1,961.61. The FY19 Contract Payment reimbursement applicable to the City of Grantville is
$189.12. The total amount available for distribution is $2,150.73.

Please complete the following form with respect to the distribution of the above refund. You may
allocate all of your refund to one of the options or split the funds between the four options by indicating
a dollar amount or percentage split. This election form is to be completed by your authorized official.

We hereby direct that ECG distribute the funds available from the FY19 Year-End Settlement and
Contract Payment Reimbursement for Electric Cities of Georgia as follows:

A. EDUCATION, TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT FUND* % $

B. ECG MEMBER RESERVE FUND** O % $=2,1S0.73
C. REFUNDED VIA CHECK % S
D. REFUNDED VIA CREDIT ON ECG BILL % S

. By:  Date: M&E‘L@T (&) 2al9

Mayor -or- City Manager

Dooe Tewsell
Printed Naffie

* These funds are specific to your utility, and you may use them for future training courses provided by
ECG.

** These funds are specific to your utility, and you may use them for any ECG Annual Budgeted
expenses or ECG Board-directed activities at the direction of your Authorized Official.

Please return the form via mail, fax or e-mail scan based on the information below at your earliest
convenience and no later than November 15, 2019. As a default, ECG will issue your refund via check
for forms not received by the deadline.

Mail:

Electric Cities of Georgia
Attention: Sallie Coleman
1470 Riveredge Parkway NW
Atlanta, Georgia 30328

Fax:
678.202.3110

E-muail:

scoleman@ecoga.org




I;mmuruwm

To: Al Grieshaber, Jr., City Manager
City of Grantville
From: Ann Barnes

Director, Budget & Billing
Date: November 1, 2019
Subject:  MCT Election Forms for Off-system Sales & Voluntary Deposits

MEAG Power Participants have the annual opportunity to designate the disposition of off-
system energy sales margins. Participants can elect to have margins applied as a credit to their
MEAG Power bill or deposited into their Municipal Competitive Trust (MCT) account(s).
Margins applied to MEAG Power bills will be separately identified by Project on the bill(s).
Margins deposited into the MCT will be deposited into the Trust account(s) and investment
option(s) on the day that the bill payment is drafted in accordance with the selected option(s)
on the completed Off-System Sales Election Form. MEAG Power has an “evergreen election”
on file for the Off-System Sales Margins Election. Attached for your convenience is a copy
of the election form designating the percentage of the deposit and the Trust account(s)
elected to deposit funds into. Please inform your MEAG Power Regional Manager if you need
anew election form. Otherwise, MEAG will continue executing your off-system sales margins
as noted on the attached “evergreen election”.

PLEASE NOTE: To change the evergreen clection for off-system sales margins, please
return the enclosed election form by December 13, 2019.

MEAG Power Participants also have the opportunity to voluntarily deposit funds into MCT
account(s) and investment option(s) on an annual or more frequent basis, if desired.
Voluntary payments and deposits are identified and described on separate lines on your city’s
monthly MEAG Power bill. Both the payment and deposit will take place on the day that the
bill payment is drafted in accordance with the selected option(s) on the completed Voluntary
Deposits into the MCT Election Form. Please contact your Regional Manager if you need a
new Voluntary Deposits into the MCT Election Form.

Completed election forms must include signatures matching the authorized signatories on file
for each Participant.

Please complete and return the desired MCT election form(s) by December 13, 2019 to
allow for processing and inclusion of the seiected beginning with the January 2020 Power
Supply bills rendered in February 2020.

Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia
1470 Riveredge Parkway NW

Atlanta, Georgia 30328-46401-800-333-
MEAG  770-563-0300




I;.mmarnwm

Please contact your Regional Manager or contact me at (770) 563-0574 if you have any
questions concerning this matter.

Enclosures

c: w/enclosures
Robi Higgins, City Clerk
Doug Jewell, Mayor
Stuart Jones




City of Grantville

ELECTION FOR OFF-SYSTEM ENERGY SALES MARGINS FOR
THE POWER SUPPLY YEAR 2020

Please choose between option 1 OR 2 below regarding the distribution of your off-system energy
sales margins.

1. Please deposit my entitled portion of the off-system energy sales margins into the
P p gy
Municipal Competitive Trust as follows:

Flexible Operating Account, Short Term Portfolio % of funds | s T

Flexible Operating Account, Intermediate Term Portfolio % of funds

*Flexible Operating Account, Intermediate Extended Maturity

Portfolio % of funds

New Generation and Capacity Funding Account, Short

Term Portfolio % of funds

New Generation and Capacity Funding Account,

Intermediate Term Portfolio % of funds

*New Generation and Capacity Funding Account,

Intermediate Extended Maturity Portfolio % of funds

Total percent of funds 100%
OR

L 2. Please credit my monthly MEAG Power bill with my entitled portion of each month’s
off-system energy sales margins.

Bd If you would like the choice you made above to be permanent, until you notify us in
writing otherwise, please check this box. This permanent selection will apply only to
your energy sales margin election.

* By authorizing deposits into the mew Intermediate Extended Maturity Portfolio, the
undersigned acknowledges the following potential liguidity restrictions:

Under normal circumstances there will be no restrictions on investment purchases into or
sales of shares from the Intermediate Extended Maturity Portfolio. On the occurrence of an
event that has a material impact on liquidity or operations of the Intermediate Extended
Maturity Portfolio, as determined by MEAG Power in its role as the Investment Advisor for
the Municipal Competitive Trust, MEAG Staff may limit purchases into or sales from the
Intermediate Extended Portfolio for a period not to exceed 120 days. Restrictions on
investments or sales beyond 120 days would require authorization from the MEAG Board.
Such restrictions shall be immediately disclosed to all beneficiaries investing in the
Intermediate Extended Maturity Portfelio of the Municipal Competitive Trust as well as the
Trustee of the Municipal Competitive Trust (US Bank or its successor).




o
~

City of Grantville

ELECTION FOR OFF-SYSTEM ENERGY SALES MARGINS FOR
THE POWER SUPPLY YEAR 2020

By:
The Honorable Doug Jewell Date
Mayor of Grantville

By:
Jim Sells Date

Utility Committee Chairperson

Please return this election form by December 13, 2019 to:

MEAG Power

¢/o Cindy Carter

1470 Riveredge Parkway NW
Atlanta, GA 30328
ccarter@meagpower.org
Phone: 770-563-0526




o '651‘1 __
.25

City of Grantville
Application for Commissions & Boards

Please note: This application is considered to be public record
Date:

I am interested in being considered for appointment to the following commissions and
boards:

(/Historic Preservation Comimission
/Plannjng Commission

Ethic Board

Name of Applicant: _ (5 FOR L £ A ges /Py B AEL AT
Home Address: 2 57 /s 5

City:  Grantville State: GA Zip Code: 70,9 30
Home Phone:/ 25 522 (08, Fnil

Number of Years as Grantville Resident? e/, X, M ? 3
[

Nominated by (if not by self):
Occupation: £2/£07 /C20 T Business/Company Name: .~ L2 22) LL5
Work Address: &%/ ;%z (2770 § gi;y /4',72: Zip Code:
Work Phone: (491523« V(27 Fax Number Y0¥ & 77 ~8970

Preferred Mailing Address:  #FHome Work

Do you currently serve on any Grantville Commissions/Boards? _ Yes ZN 0




e

If so, which one(s)?

Degrees earned and schools attended: M7 £/ ELELYR Lr £ AN S THIE 7 174

Professional experience (including profess:ional memberships and previous employment):
CLAE /3o SATECY TMSRUCTON 0.0 CXAE (o i3>
CAZie>

Community Activities (including civic clubs, volunteer activities, service organizations,

cte): AP ILD T fUtcorns

Comments/special qualifications: (% f Eﬁ 4/ 8 / % 74 i (Coak7Re (.'Zfﬁ/}/
G AT R oF 2LO0EZ  foass

Why do you want to serve on this commission/board? Z- X ,f,:ﬁ' L T ,(//7; 7
HAVE _Bosl JHIN - B0 0 /FER s#E 2Ty # 25t
_RESPENIHA P

Thank you for your interest in volunteering to serve on a City of Grantville commission
or board! The duties and responsibilities vary greatly, however members are expected to
attend all regularly scheduled meetings (most commissions/boards meet once monthly).
Additional responsibilities will often include conducting independent research outside of
these regular meetings in furtherance of the goals and objectives of the commission or
board.

Instructions for Submitting Completed Application

Once the application form has been completed please turn into City Hall.

Signature: %{? 5M Date: /Q/»?j;/ SO/5




City of Gra_h’tville
Application for Commissions & Boards

Please nofe: This applicatior} is considered to be public record

_ Date:

I am interested in being considered for appointment to the following commissions
and boards: ' .

Historic Preservation Commission
[1 Pianning Commission
L] Recreation Advisory Board

[] Downtown Development Authority

Name of Applicant: [/() NN Ledd (Penn

Home Address: \"A\, UowD \’Lv\QC@
| CitY-&mJ ‘lf”"w State: GA Zip Code: 5@@&0
Home Phone:th&»tassﬂ/l"{E--_Man; LWLBM&K et @%mad . Coom

Lés\

Number of Years as Grantville Resident? &

Nominated by (if not by self):
Occupation: Lad Aﬂmo} Business/Company Name: —

Work Address: — City; — - Zip Code; —

Work Phone: Fax Number: —




Preferred Mailing Address: JE/Home [] Work
Do you currently serve on any Grantvilie Commissions/ Boards? Mes [ No

o )
If 80, which one(s)? ocgoation Aol Vido
Degrees eamed and schools attended: PJL@;!’\O_S% M/W\fﬂ

Professional experience (include professional memberships and previous A0 M us /\\Q)mu%
employment): : n Com e Ahions ;
' Peesonne) } R

Commiunity Activities (inciude civic clubs, voiunteer activities, service

organizations, etc.):. Cnddwzen Condern (o000 Comled. o deoed DF,WLLV*\—

Comments/special qualifications: W% 0@ \}o\m,fv\—\—q,a,ﬂ,lmag\ Gﬁw\mum'd:x%@n&am}\&_ ..
Why do you want to serve on this commissjon/board? "1 wur} Jo a9e_ e Jown ftumenizd
s Post wWhde Cgeobubw%wvfb s Lz | |
Thank you for your interest in volunteering to serve on a City of Grantville
commission or board! The dufies and responsibilities vary greatly, however
members are expected to attend all regularly scheduléd meetings (most

commissions/boards meet once monthly). Additional responsibilities will often
include conducting independent research outside of these regular meetings in

furtherance of the goals and objectives of the commission or board.

Instructions for Submiiting_ Completed Appiication

Once the application form has been completed, you may either save the _
document to your desktop and print for mailing or click on the “Submit” buiton
below. Within two business days, you will receive an e-mail from City Hall -

confirming receipt of you application.




~

Discussion/Recommendation to Amend Section 38-1(b) of the Code of
Ordinances to employ the services of a rating specialist not less than
every five years to study and review the rates then in effect and suggest

changes.




Amendment to Section 38-1(b) of the Code of Ordinances

Presently, Section 38-1(b) of the Code of Ordinances requires the city to employ the
services of a rating specialist not less than once annually to study and review the utility

rates then in effect and suggest changes.

Suggestion: Employ the services of a rating specialist not less than every five years to

study and review the rates then in effect and suggest changes.




UTILITIES § 385

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL

Sec. 38-1. Mandatory annual utilities rate re-
view, :

(a) The elected officials of the city shall pass on
to any and all utility customers any increase from
any supplier of water, gas and electric and such
increases shall be automatic and effective without
action of council. The city clerk shall charge the
rates with the first billing cycle after such an in-
crease. '

(b) The governing body of the city shall employ
the services of a rating specialist not less than onge
annually 10 study and review the utility rates then in
effect and suggest changes, either increases or
decreases, in each ulility offered to the citizens.

{c) At a regular council meeting, the recommen-
dations of the rate study shall be made public and if
such recormmended rates of the study are not
adopted, a full explanation shall be given at such
meeting as to why such recommendations of the
rating specialist are not being put into effect.

(Prior Code, § 13.04.010; Ord. No. 671, 8-24-19986)

Sec. 38-2. Utility bills; due dates; disconnec-
fions.

(@) Payment of city utility bills shail be due and
payable on the fifteenth (15™) day of the month and
shall be desmed late after the fifteenth (15™) day of
the month. Payments received after the fifteenth
(15™) day of the month shail be charged a Iate fee.

{b) Utility services will be disconnected on those
accounts for which payment has not been received
by the tweniy-fourth (24"™) day of the month. There
will be a reconnection fee {0 reestablish services on
such disconnected accounis.

{c) The amounts of late fee and the reconnection
fee shall be established by the city council by
resolution from time to time. _

(Prior Gode, § 13.04.020; Ord. No. 682, 1997; Ord.
No. 10-2013, § 1, 10-28-2013)

Supp. No. 4

Sec. 38-3. Rates for city services.

Rates and fees for all city utility services shall be

as establishied by the city coungil, from time io time,
and will be available for public inspection on a
schedule kept and maintained by the clerk.
(Prior Code, §§ 13.04.030—13.04.050; Ord. No.
672, 1996; Ord. No. 680, 1997; Ord. No. 685, 1997;
Ord. of 3-23-1998; Ord. No. $90, 2000; Ord. No.
723, 2-24-2003; Ord. No. 2011-02, 3-14-2011)

Sec. 38-4. Construction or exiension of utility
lines.

(&) Any utility company which proposes to con-
struct or extend any poles, towers, lines, wires,
cables, conduits, insulators, transformers, appli-
ances, either overhead or underground, shall submit
the proposed plans and drawings to the clerk of the
city at least 30 days prior to the beginning of such
construction or extension.

{b) The clerk shall submit such plans to the
mayor and coungil of the city to determine if the
proposed construction or extension of utility lines
will interfere with traffic or commerce or be a hazard
to the citizens of the city when complete, Upon a
determination being made that such extension or
construction of utility lines will not interfere with
traffic or commerce or be a hazard to the citizens of
the city, the mayor and council will instruct the clerk
to issue a permit to the utility company proposing
the construction authorizing same.

{c) 1 no action has been taken to either approve
or disapprove the proposed construction within 30
days from the date of its submission to the clerk, the
city will have been deemed io have approved the
proposed construction and the clerk shail issue a
permit therefor.

(d) It is unlawfui for any utility company to con-
struct or extend any overhead or underground utility
fine within the city limits for which approval is
required under subsection (a) of this section without
a permit from the city.

(Prior Code, § 13.04.060; Ord. No. 535, 1-9-1 978)

Sec. 38-5. Lease agreement required.

Upon adoption of the ordinance from which this
section is derived, a person renting property within
the city must produce at the time of application for

CD38:3




Discussion/Recommendation to Amend Section 2.02(f) of the Charter

requiring that those candidates seeking election for the office of mayor
and council whe receive a majority (replacing plurality) of the votes east S
shall be deemed elected. )

( B} B




R

@TT?SthL&

8) Specifying dates of elections.

Sec. 2.02. - Qualifications and election of mayor and councilmembers.

(@ There is created the office of mayor of the City of Grantville. There are created four (4) council posts
of the City of Grantville, which shall be known as Council Posts 1, 2, 3, and 4. Each and every
council post shall be for the city at large,

(b}  The mayor and the councilmembers shall be elected by the qualified electors 18 years of age or
over and may be qualified as a candidate for mayor or counciimember by submitting to the city clerk
a notice of candidacy at least 15 days prior to the election. In case of a candidacy for
councilmember, the candidate shail give the number of the post for which ke or she is qualifying as a
candidate.

(c) The terms of the two councilmembers from Post 3 and Post 4, respsctively, who were elected in

November, 1997, and shall take office on the first day of January following their election. Thereafter,
successors shall be elected quadrennially in odd-numbered years and shall take office on the first
day of January following their election.

(d) The terms of the mayor and the two councilmembers from Posts 1 and 2, respectively, who were
elected in 2014 shall end on December 31, 2019, and when their respective successors are elected
and qualified. Their respective successors shall be elected on the Tuesday foliowing the first Monday
in November, 2018, and shalil take office on the first day of January foliowing their election, and when
their respective successors are elected and qualified. Thereafter, successors shall be elected
quadrennially in odd-numbered years and shall take office on the first day of January following their
election.

(e) The terms of office of mayor and councilmember shail begin at 12:01 A.M., on the first day of
January following their election, and they shall serve until their successors have been elecied and
qualified.

(i Those candidates seeking election for the office of mayor and council who receive a plurality of the
votes cast shall be deemed elected.

(1993 Ga. Laws (Act. No. 129), p. 4351; 1997 Ga. Laws (Act. No. 144), p. 3865; :
g, §1,1-23-2017)

Sec. 2.03. - Governing body.

A mayor and four councilmen shaii constitute the city council, in which is vested all the corporate,
legislative and other powers of the City, except as otherwise provided in this Act. The councit shall be the
final judge of the election and Qualification of its members. The council shall hold regular meetings at a
stated time and place, as provided by ordinance. The council shali meet in special sessions on written cal!

The mayor and council shall have the power at their discrstion to appoint a cily manager who shail
serve at the city council's pleasure. Said city manager shall be the principal managerial aide to the mayor
and shall perform such duties, as may be assigned to him by the mayor and coungil.




—

Q‘E \OF Sec&

(6) Specifying dates of elections.

Sec. 2.02. - Qualifications and election of mayor and councilmembers.

(a} There is created the office of mayor of the City of Grantville. There are created four (4) council posts
of the City of Grantville, which shall be known as Council Posts 1, 2, 3, and 4. Each and every
council post shall be for the city at large.

(b) The mayor and the counciimembers shall be elected by the qualified electors 18 years of age or
over and may be qualified as a candidate for mayor or councilmember by submitting to the city clerk
a notice of candidacy at least 15 days prior to the election. In case of a candidacy for
councilmember, the candidate shall give the number of the post for which he or she is qualifying as a
candidate.

{c) The terms of the two councilmembers from Post 3 and Post 4, respectively, who were elected in
1995 shall end on December 31 » 1997, and when their respective successors are elected ang
qualified. Their respective successors shall be elected on Tuesday following the first Maonday in
November, 1997, and shall take office on the first day of January following their election. Thereafter,
successors shall be elacted quadrennially in odd-numbered years and shall take office on the first
day of January following their election. ‘

(d) The terms of the mayor and the two councilmembers from Posts 1 and 2, respectively, who were

their respective successors are elected and qualified. Thereafter, successors shall be elected
quadrennially in odd-numbered years and shall take office on the first day of January following their
election.

(e) The terms of office of mayor and councilmember shall begin at 12:01 A.M., on the first day of
January following their election, and they shall serve unti their successors have been elected and
quaiified.

(f} Those candidates seeking election for the office of mayor and council who receive a majority of the
votes cast shall be deemed elected. )

(1993 Ga. Laws (Act. No. 129), p. 4351; 1997 Ga. Laws (Act. No. 144), p. 3865; Far
&1, 81, 1-23-2017)

Sec. 2.03.- Governing body.

A mayor and four counciimen shall constitute the city council, in which is vested all the corporate,

legistative and other powers of the City, except as otherwise provided in this Act. The council shall be the

left at their residences, at least 12 hours in advance of the meeting. Such notice of a special meeting shall
not be required if the mayor and all councilmen are present when the special meeting is called. Only the
business stated in the written call may be transacted at a special meeting, except by unanimous consent
by all members of the council, The council shall exercise its powers in public meetings. A majority of the
council shall constitute a guorum. The council may by ordinance adopt rules and bylaws fo govern the

The mayor and council shall have the power at their discretion to appoint a city manager who shall
serve at the city council's pleasure. Said city manager shall be the principal managerial aide to the mayor
and shall perform such duties, as may be assigned to him by the mayor and council.




i ’

Dﬁscmssﬁm@ewmmmdaﬁ@ﬁa to Amend Section 3.03 of the Charter in
line 4 by adding the phrase “Should the post of City Manager not be

filled”s --after the words the Mayor may direct for such purposes and
before the words--he shall have. .. .




e %‘%\__ﬁ *ﬁ.@l

£

The Clty Clerlt shall nimber ordinances consecuively in the order of their iinal adeption and shail
¢ODY fhem into a permanent record book used solely for this purpose and the City Clerk shafl do
filewise for resolutions lsing a separaie serigs of nurnbers and a second racord book. The original
coples of all ordinances ang resolutions shall be filed and preserved by the City Clerk.

sec. .12, - Rules and regulations,

The council may by ordinance auihorize officers and agencies of ths clty to promulgate formal rules
and regulations within ihelr respeciive jurisdictions, subject to such resirictions and standards of guidance
a8 the councl may prascribe, No such formal rule or regulation shall take effect uns i is filed with the ciiy
clerk, who shall file and preserve the originel copy in his office. Amendmenis of such rules and

regulations shall be accomplished only by sefiing forth cornplete sections or subsections in their ameandead
form.

ARTICLE I11, - ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL
Sec. 3.01. - Departments.

The cfty governmeani shall bs organizad inio the following depariments:
Fualice Depariment

Utiliy Depariment
Acministrative Deparimear
Gireat and Public Works Depariment

The uiflity department wil be composed of the gas system, waler sysiem, ang elacirical sysiamn.

Unless and unif otherwise providad by ordinance, ihe mayor shall, on the second Monday in
January of sach year, appoint a commitiee compased of the counciimen duly qualified and slecied o
oversee the functions of the varioug depaiiments.

Sec. 3.02. - Planning commission,

There shall be a Planning Commission appointed by the mayor and council of the Cliy of Graniville

comprised of five from the cily af large. The planning commission so appoinied shall serve gs g
fecomimending body io the mayor and councll and shail carry out those duifes as provided by ordinance.

Sec. 5.03. - Administrative duties of mayor.

the Mayor shall be ihe Sxecuilve haad of the Cily govemnment responsibig for the efficient ang
orderly administration of the cify's affairs. He shall be responsible for the enforcament of laws, rules and
ragudations, ordinances, and for franchises in the city and the ity ettorney shall take such legal sctions as
the Mayar may direct for Such purposes. He shall have the authority io confrol the wark of all offices and
emplovees of the city and shall further have 3 e authorly 10 religve any employes of his duiies without
pay for up o seven (7) days for faliure o properly perform those duties or for failure to follow fawiul
ingtructions. The Mavyor shall submit o the Counell anqual budgais, reporis and such other Information as
he may deem necessary or the Council may require. He shzll have authoiily o make allotments of funds
within the limiis of eppropriations and no sxpendiiures shall be made without his approval. ¥ no other
employee or official iz designated as purchasing ageni, he shafl aci as purchasing agent for the city. He
may gonauct ingquiries and investigations inio conduct of the city's affairs and shall have such other
Rowers and dulies ag may be provided by Ordinance not inconsistent with this act,




D, The City Cleric shall number ordinances consecuiively in the order of their final adoption and shayl
COpy them info a permanent record book used solely for this purpose ang the Gily Clerl shall do
likewdise for rasolutions using a separate seriss of numbers and a second record 20ok. The original
copies of all ordinancas and resolutions shall be filed and preserved by the City Clerk,

(Crd. Mo, 03-2007, 4-23-2007)
Sec. 2.12. - Rules and regulations.

The coungit may by ordinance authorize officers and agencies of the city o promulgate formal rules
and regulations within their raspective jurisdictions, subject to such resiriciions and standards of guidanes
as the coungi) may prescribs. No such formal fule or regulation shall iake effect uniil i is filed with the city
clerk, whe shall file and preserve ihe original copy in his offics, Amendmenis of such rles and
ragulaiions shati be accomplished only by seiting forth complsie sections or subsections in fheir amended
yorm.

ARTICLE I, - ORGANIZATION AND PERSONMEL
Sac. 3,04, - Depariments.

The elty government shall be organized inio the following depariments:
Polics Depariment

Utllity Department
Administrative Depariment
Strest and Public Works Deparimant

The uility depariment will be composed of the gas system, water systerm, and elscirical sysiem.

Unless and untii otherwise provided by ordinance, the mayor shall, on the secong lionday in
January of sach year, appoint a commitiae composed of ihe counciimen duly qualified ang elecied o
overses ihe funciions of ths various deparimeanis.

Sec. 3.02. - Planning commissian,

There shall be g Planning Commission appoiniad by the mayor and councl of the Gy of Grantvills
comprised of five from the ciiy at large. The planning commission so appointed shall serve =g a
recommending body o the mayor and councll and shall cary oui those duiiss as provided by ordinancs.

Se¢. 3.03. - Administrative duties of maver,

The Mayor shall be ihe exacuiive head of ihe city governmens responsible for the efficiant and
orderly adminisiration of the city's affairs, He shail be responsible for the enforcement of laws, rules and
regulations, ordinances, and for Tranchises in the city and the city attomney shail take such legal actions as
the Mayor may direct far such purposes. Should the post of City Manager net be filled, He shall have the
atthority to control the work of all offices ang EMPIOYSes o ha Gty and shall furiher RavaT € auinoriy w©
relieve any employee of his dutias withoui pay for Up io seven (7) days for failure o propeny parform
those dutiss or for failure o follow lawfyj instructions. The Mayor shall submit io the Council annua
budgets, raports angd such other information as he may deam necessary or ihe Council may reguire. He
shall have authority 1o make allotments of funcls within the fimits of appropriations and no expendiitras
shall be mads withous his approval. If no other emplovee or official is designaied as purchasing agens hs
snall act as purchasing agent for ihe city. He may conduct inquiries anc invesiigaiions into conduct of the
Cily's affairs ang shall have such otier powers and duties as may be provided by Ordinance ot
inconsistent with this act.




i

Discussion/Recommendation to Amend Section 3.04 of the Charter in

line 2 by deleting the phrase “who shall be the chief managerial aide to
ﬂh@ mayl@ﬂ’”. . . - T

(




Sec. 3.04. - Clity ranager,

Should the post of Gty manager be filled, the cliy manager shall be appoinied by the mayor and

council who shall he ihe Nanagerial aide {o the may or._He shall have the authority o Eppoint,
promote, demote, uranster, suspend and ramove all employess aid @ diecr a5 conirol their worlc excapi

as otherwise orovided in this Act. With the approval of the mayor and council, he shall bs responsible for
Preparing for the mayor ang council annual budget reporis angd such other Information as the mayor and
counsii mav deam Necessary and require. He ghall De the purchasing agent for ihe city.

Sec.3.05. - Chty attorney.

The mavor shail appoint a ciiy atiomey, fogether with such assistant city atiornsys as may pae
auihorized hy ordinance. The city atiorney shall be responsible for fepresenting and defending ths city in
alt fiigation in which the City Is a party, shall he the prosscuting offficer in the 'ecorter'’s court unless a
prosecutor is separaiely appointed pursuant io Secilon 3.06 of the charter, and shall advise the counci,
mayor and other officers and employaes of the city conceming legal aspacts of tha Clty's affairs

Sec. 3.06. - Racorder's CQurt,

8) Generally. There shall be a court 1 be known as the "Municipal Court of the City of Granvitle,
Georgia ™

b)  Chifef judge, associals jidge.

{1) The municipal couri shafl he prasided over by a chier judge appointed by the Mayor and
Couneil and such pari-time, full-iime or stand-hy associzie Iudgas as may be appoinied 2V the
Viayor and Councii.

(2} No person shall be qualifed or eligible to seive as 2 judge of the municipal court uniess that
person Is tweniy-one (21} years old and licensed fo practice law in the Siate of Georgia.

(3) Compensaiion Tor judges shall be ixad by the Mayor and Councit.
(4} Judges may Bs removed oy the Mayor and Council,

¢)  Convening. The miunicipal court shall convene 1o less than once a Monih at a fime and in 2 placa
designaied by the Mavorand Council,

d)  Jursdioiion; Powers,
{1) The munfcipal court shall iy and punish ali vioiaifons of City ordinances or lawvirs,

{2) The municipal court shall have authority to punish for coniempt in accordance with genersl
stale faw,

(3) The judge of fhe municipal court shall have the power and authority o impose upon the viplator
of any law or ordinancs, for sach violation theraof. the following bunishmsnts:

{iy Afine notio excead one thousand dollars ($1 ,000.00);
(i} Imprisonmen for & period of not more than welve (12) monihs;
i) Community service Wwork; or

(") Anvoneorallof these punishrnants when ihe facis of the case Jusiliy such punishmanis;




.‘/—“

(1988 (s, LEWS, p. 5193)
Sec. 3.04. - City manager.

Shouid the post of Cily manager ba filled, the city manager shall be appoinied by the mavor ang
cauncil. He shall have the auihority o gppoini_ pro RO, _demote, iransfer, Suspend and remove al]
smployess 350 direct and control their wWork ©XCapt 28 otherwise providad I tis Act. With the appoval
of the mavor and council, he shall he fesponsible for preparing for the mayor and council annuai budget
reports and such othar information as the mayor and councl] may deam Necessary ang requirs. He shajl
be the purchasing agent for the city.

Sec. 3.05. - City attornay.

The mayor shali appoint a ciy afiorney, togeiher with such assistani ciiy aitormeve gs nay be
auvthorized by ordinancs. The city attorney shall ha responsible for represaniing and defending the city in

all liigation in which the cliy is g pary, shall be the prosecuiing officer in the recorder's couri unless

prosecutor iz Separately appoinied pursuani io Seciion 3.06 of the charter, and shall advise e council,
mayor and oiher oficers and emplovess of the city conesrning legal aspects of the CHY'S affairs.

Sec. 5.06, - Recaordar's court,

&)  Generaffy, There shall bs 2 couit o he kilown as the "Municipal Court of ihe Chy of Grantvillg,
Ceorgia.®

) Chler Udge, associata Jidge.

(i)  The municipal court shali be presided over by a chigr Judge appoinied by the Mayor and
Council and such par-ifme, full<ime or stand-by associsis judges ag may be appointed by the
Mayor and Coungii,

(2) Mo person shall be qualifiad or eligibie o serve as g judge of the municipal cowrt uniess that
person is tweniy-one {21) vears old and licensed fo practice Jaws in the Siafe of Georgia.

(8)  Compensation for Judges shall be fixad by the Mavor and Council.
4} Judges may be removed by the Mayor and Courcil,

] Convening. The municipal court shall convene no less than onca a monih at 3 tirne and in a placs
designaied by the Mayor and Coungil,

cl) Jiirisdiction; powers.
(1} The municipal couri shajl iy and punish afl violations of city ordinances or laws,

(2) The municipal court shail have authortty to pumish 7or conempt in accordance with generg)
siate law,

(3) The judge of the municipal cotirt shall have ihe power and atthority io impose upon the vioizios
oF any law or ordinancs, for each viclation thereof, the following bunishmenis:
& Afine noi o excesd one thousand dollars ($1,000.00);
{if) mprisanment for & period of not more than iwslve {12) monihs;
(I Comm unity sarvice work; or
(iv)  Any one or ai Of fhese punishmenis when the facis of fhe case justify such punishmenis;




Discussion/Recommendation to Add a New Paragraph to Charter
section 3.04: The City Manager shall notify the Mayor and City
Council as soon as feasible of all work being pe'rfoﬁ*med on City
Property save for ordimarsr repair and maintenance activities identifying

who is performing the work and the funding source.




———

f/_\

Ce '\Cbi hm\
(1988 Ga. Laws, p. 5193)

Sec. 3.04. - City manager.

Should the post of city manager be filled, the city manager shall be appointed by the mayor and
council who shall be the chief managerial aide to the mayor. He shall have the authority to appoint,
promote, demote, transfer, suspend and remove all employees and to direct and control their work except
as otherwise provided in this Act. With the approval of the mayor and council, he shall be responsible for
preparing for the mayor and council annual budget reporis and such other information as the mayor and
councit may deem necessary and require. He shall be the purchasing agent for the aity.

Sec. 3.05. - City attorney.

The mayor shall appoint a city attorney, together with such assistant city attorneys as may be
authorized by ordinance. The city attorney shall be responsible for representing and defending the city in
all litigation in which the city is a party, shall be the prosecuting officer in the recorder's court unless a
prosecutor is separately appointed pursuant to Section 3.06 of the charter, and shall advise the council,
mayor and other officers and employees of the city concerning legal aspects of the city's affairs.

(Ord. No. 01-2013, 1-14-2013; Ordl. No. 02-2014. 2-10-2014 )

Sec. 3.06. - Recorder's court.

a}  Generally. There shall be a court to be known as the "Municipal Court of the City of Grantville,
Georgia."

b)  Chief judge, associate judge.

(1)  The municipal court shall be presided over by a chief judge appointed by the Mayor and
Council and such pari-time, full-time or stand-by associate judges as may be appointed by the
Mayor and Council.

{2} No person shall be qualified or eligible to serve as a judge of the municipal court unless that
person is twenty-one (21) years old and licensed to practice law in the State of Georgia.

(3) Compensation for judges shall be fixed by the Mayor and Council.
(4) Judges may be removed by the Mayor and Council,

¢) Convening. The municipal court shall convene no less than once a month at a time and in a place
designated by the Mayor and Council,

d} Jurisdiction; powers.
(1)} The municipal court shall try and punish all violations of city ordinances or laws.

(2)  The municipal court shall have authority to punish for contempt in accordance with general
state law.

(3) The judge of the municipal court shall have the power and authority to impose upen the violator
of any law or ordinance, for each violation thereof, the following punishments:

(i) Afine not to exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00);

()  Imprisonment for a period of not more than tweive (12) months;

(i)  Community service work: or

(v} Any one or all of these punishments when the facts of the case justify such punishments;




Qe:o \\St’é\

(1988 Ga. Laws, p. 5193)

Sec. 3.04. - City manager.

Should the post of city manager be filled, the city manager shall be appointed by the mayor and
council who shall be the chief managerial aide to the mayor. He shall have the authority to appoint,
promote, demote, transfer, suspend and remove ail employees and to direct and control their work except
as otherwise provided in this Act. With the approval of the mayor and council, he shall be responsible for
preparing for the mayor and council annual budget reports and such other information as the mayor and
council may deem necessary and require. He shall be the purchasing agent for the city.

The City Manager shall notify the Mayor and City Council as soon as feasible of all work being

performed on City Property save for ordinary repair and maintenance activities identifying who is
performing the work and the funding source.

Sec. 3.05. - City attorney.

The mayor shall appoint a city attorney, together with such assistant city atiorneys as may be
authorized by ordinance. The city attorney shall be responsible for representing and defending the city in
all litigation in which the city is a party, shall be the prosecuting officer in the recorder's court unless a
prosecutor is separately appointed pursuant to Section 3.06 of the charter, and shall advise the council,
mayor and other officers and employees of the city concerning iegal aspects of the city's affairs.

(Ord. No. 01-2013, 1-14-2013; Ord. No. 02-2014, 2-10-2014 )

Sec. 3.06. - Recorder's court.

a) Generally. There shall be a court to be known as the "Municipal Court of the City of Grantville,
Georgia." ‘

b) Chiefjudge, associate Judge.

{1) The municipal court shall be presided over by a chief judge appointed by the Mayor and
Council and such pari-time, full-time or stand-by associate judges as may be appointed by the
Mayor and Counci, ‘

{2)  No person shall be qualified or eligible to serve as a judge of the municipal court unless that
person is twenty-one (21) years old and licensed to practice law in the State of Georgia.

(3) Compensation for judges shall be fixed by the Mayor and Council.
{(4) Judges may be removed by the Mayor and Council.

¢) Convening. The municipal court shall convene no less than once a month at a time and in a place
designated by the Mayor and Councit.

d) Jurisdiction; powers.
(1) The municipal court shall try and punish all violations of city ordinances or laws,

(2)  The municipal court shall have authority to punish for contempt in accordance with general
state law.

(3) The judge of the municipal court shall have the power and authority to impose upon the violator
of any law or ordinance, for each violation thereof, the following punishments:

(i) A fine notto exceed one thousand dollars ($1,000.00);




CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGED COMMUNCIATION

Obviously, there is a significant cost, monetarily and politically, to litigation and the
Council may choose to avoid litigation and move forward with rebuilding thé wall and to allow
whatever political repercussions to simply occur. One of the issues that must be resolved appears
to be the role that the Mayor is permitted to play in the everyday workings of the City. There are
existing laws and ordinances in place that were not followed. It appears from interviews and 2
review of circumstances surroundiﬁg the wall that the Mayor played a large role in the everyday
operations of the City, often usurping the role of the City Manager in managing the day to day
running of the City. The Charter gives the Mayor an extensive amount of power of oversight of
the daily Workings of the City and, as shown by this Mayor, can lead to abuses, intentional or not,
especially given that the Mayor has the discretion to suspend city personnel without any apparent
oversight or procedural recourse for the employees for up to seven days. If the City is going to
continue to utilize the services of a City Manager, it may be in the best interests of the Council to
reduce the role of the Mayor in the day to day operations of the City. If the City Council wishes
to have the Mayor act as the City Manager, then the City Manager position should be eliminated
for financial and administrative reasons.

At the end of the day, the interaction between the local government and the Cemetery Trust
was done in an inept manner, at best, that wasted financial resources and created a schism within
the local government that needs to be repaired. Actions, no matter how well meaning, by the
Trustees and the City officials, were poorly executed and need attention to avoid a repeat of such

careless stewardship. It is recommended that the local government officials and the Cemetery

Trustees thoughtfully decide to pursue litigation or mediate this matter and address the

construction mishap. The City should also implement profocols to avoid similar situations. An

ongoing reporting requirement identifying each private entity working on or near government

00183202 23

B PR e s R T




CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGED COMMUNCIATION

property and the method of procurement for the work may be a sufficient starting point to alert the

City Council as to what work is being performed.

The public was not well served, monies were squandered, and further monies will need to

be spent to correct the errors. All could have been avoided with adherence to existing policy and

responsible leadership.

Respectfully Submitted,

St il

Les A. Schneider

zorma 24




R

CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGED COMMUNCIATION

APPENDIX A

Paossible Courses of Action

o]

00183202

City could sue Rosser Construction, Deering and the suppliers to recover costs.
City could try to sue for defective construction but there are issues related to the
lack of contract and City emaployee involvement in the construction that is
problematic. With regards to the walls that did not collapse but are considered
defective, the City will be limited (in addition to baving no written contract) in any
recovery to the cost of the construction. The City will also have to retain an forensic
expert in construction standards as well as engineering.

The Trust could sue the City and Mayeor for the misuse of the funds that were gifted
to the City. The City could then cross claim against the Mayor (as Mayor and
individually) and add Rosser Construction, Deering, and suppliers to lawsuit to recover
fﬁnds.

KEnowing the likely finding that the government officials acted outside the scope of
state Jaw and ordinances, i may be possible to approach Rosser and others
negotiate a completion of the project.

Recall is not a City Council function per se and is not an available City Council
course of action. Recall is a procedure whereby the voters make the ultimate
determination as to whether an official should retain his office for the duration of the
term to which he was elected.

The City should implement additional procedures/policies to require notification to
conncil of all work being performed on City property identifying who is performing

ithe work and fhe funding source,

25




CONFIDENTIAL ATTORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGED COMMUN CIATION

)

00183202

The City should infroduce changes to ordinances and charter limiting the role of

Mayor if the City continues to utilize 2 City Manager,

by City Officials and Enployees.

26




( ﬁ'ﬁig&issio;/}{eciojﬁﬂmemdé}ion to Amend Section 3.07 of the Charter in L
line 1 by adding the phrase after the word--charter, “the City Manager, e
if the post is filled or otherwise” and before—the Mayor and eity i
council... . | o
( e ) _ B S
.,\ ) S — . e - — —_— s, -




——
4

= ,——3‘: L SN
O
(\\5\?\0\
provided, however, that each coniempt of municipal court shall he punishable efiher by

Imposition of 2 fine not exceeding five hundrad dollars {($500.00) or by imprisonment for &
period of time not exceeding thirty (30) days or boih,

(4} The municipal court shali have authority ic establish 2 schedule of feee o defray the cost of
Operation and shall he eniifled o relmburssment of the cost of meals, transporiation, ang
carefaking of prisoners hound over o superior couris.

{8} The municipal court shail have authority o establish bail and recognizance io ensure the
presence of those charged with violations befors saig cour and shall have tiscrationary
authorlty to accept cash or personal or real properiy as securily for the appearance of parsons

- charged with violations, Whenever any person shall give bail o assure appezgrance and fails io
appear at the time fixad for irigl, that person's bond shall be forfeied by the judge, and an
exacution shail be issued thereon by serving the defendant and the defandani's sureiies with a
rule nisi, at least fwo days before a hearing on the rule nisi, 5 properiy or cash is accepled in
fisu of bond far security for ihe appearance of & defendant at triaf and said defendant fails to
appear at the ms and the place fixed for the irial, the cash so deposited shall be on order of
ihe judge declared ia he forfeited o the sity, or the broperty so deposiied shall have a lien
against it for the vaiya forfeited which lisn shall he enforceable in the same mamner and o tha
same exient as & lien for Cily properiy taxes.

6} The municipal court shali have the same authorily as supsrior couris io compel the production
of avidence in fhe Possession of any pariy; to enforce obedlence to iis orders, judgmanis and
seniencas; and ia administer such oaths ag &I'¢ Necessary.

{7}  The municipal court may compel the pressnce of aff PEISONs necessary io dispose properly of
2ach case by the issuancs of summons, subpoena and warranis which may be served as
executed by anv officer as authorized by this charter or by general siate layy,

(8) The municipal court is speciiically vasted with all the Jjurisdiction and powers throughiout fhe
eniire area of this city granted by general stais lawe io municipal couris and paricularly by such.
iaws as authorize the abatement of nuisances and prosecution of traffic viclations.

8) Appeals. Pariies dissatisfied with the decision of the municipal court may petition for & wiit of
certiorari to the superior court as provided by law,

T Rules ior court With the approval of the city council, the judge shalf have ull Power and auihority to
make reasonable rulss and regulations necessary and propar o secure the efficient and successfy

adminisiration of the mumicipal court. Such rules or regulaiions shall be with the city clerk and made
avallable for public inspeciion.

¢}  Court Clerkc Tha Mayor and Gouncil shail apnoint a Glerk of Municipal Court, along with anv such
Depuiy Cletks, as they may deem approprisia.

1) Prosescutor The Mayor and Council may appoint & Prosecuior in the Municipat Court, along with any
sucht Deputy Prosscuiors, as they may desm appropriate.

(Ord. No. 09-2009, 12-14-2009)

n e ab

Rditor's note— Recorder's courts have been renamed municipal conris pursuant io 0.0 3. 4

P T AL §

Sec. 3.07. - Administrative and service departments.

(a) Excapt as otherwise provided in this charter, the Mayor and ciiv P il pras ¢
the funciions or dufles and ssiablish, abolish, alfer, consolidaie, or leave vacant afl nonglective
oificers, pos;rﬁ%?ﬁmi?deﬁaﬁmenfs, and agencies of the ciiy as necessary for fie proper
administration of the affairs and govemment of this city. '

council by ordinancs shall prascribe




)

i)

Rew

a3

Sed

Provided, howsver, that gach contempt of mtiticipal court shall be punishable oither by
imposition of a fine noi exceeding five hundred dollare ($500.00) or by hmprisonment for =
period of time not exceading thiry (30) days or both.

(4) The municipal court shal have authorily i esiablish g schedule of fees o defray ihe cost of
Operation and shall be eniitled o reimbursemeait of the cost of meals, transporiztion, and
caretaking of prisoners hound over 1o superior courts,

&) The municipal court shaii have authority to esiablish bail and Tecognizance io ensure the

authoriy o accept cash or personal or real proparty as s2curity for the appearance of persons
charged with viplaiions. Whensvar any person shall give bhajl 1o aS5Ure appearance and fails {o
appear at the time fixed for irial, thai person's bond shall he forfsited by the Judgs, and an
execution shall be issued thereon by serving the defendan: and the defendanis surelies with g
rie nisi, af least two days before g hearing on ihe rule nisi. I properiy or cash js accepiad jn
liel of band for secuitly for e appearance of a defendans at trigf and If said defendant falls io
abpear at the time ang e place

ihe judge declered to be forfeited to the City, or the propery so deposiied shall have a lien
against it for the value forfeliag which lien shall ba enforesabie in the Same manner and io the
same exient as a lien for city property taxes.

By The municipal courr shall hava the same authoriy as superior couris in compal the produciion
of evidenes I fhe Passession of any pariy; io enforee obedience io iis orders, judgmenis and
sentences; and to admirisier such oaths as arg necessary.

(f} The musicipal court may compel the presence of ajl Persons necessary io dispose propsrly of
Bach case by the issuance of summons, subpoenz and waitanis which may be served ag
Sxecuiad by any officer ag authorized hy this charer or by general siais law,

8 The municipal couwst iz speciiically vested with all the Jurisdiction and powers throughaut the
entire ares of this City granted by general staiz laws o municipal courts ang particularly by such
laves as auihorize ihe abatement of nuisances and prosacuiion of iraffic violafions.

Appsals. Partieg dissatisiied whh the decision of the municipal court mRy petfiion for 2 wrip of
Ceriiorari to the superior couri as Provided by [z,

Rules for court With ihe approval of the city council, the Judge shall have fuj| Rower and authority to
make raasonabie rides and regulaiions necessary and propar ia secure the efficient ang successiyf
administration of the municipal court. Such rules or regulations shall be wiih the oliy clerk and made
available for public inspaction. ‘

Court Clartt. The Mayor and Council shall appoint a Clerk of Municipai Cour, along with any such
Deputy Clerks, as they may deam approprists,

Frosscutor. The Mayor and Gouncit N2y appoint a Prosecuior in the Municipat Court, along with any
such Depuiy Prosecu’cors, as thay may desm appropriais.

(Crd. e, 09-2009, 12-14-2009)

1HOr's mote— Recorder's courts have been renameg municipal courts Putsuant to 0.2 4 §

Sec. 3.07. - Administrative and service depariments.

(@)

Except as ofherwiss provided in this charier, {he Gty f ihe post is filled or oifisrwiss
Mavor and City council by ordinance shail preseribe duiiss and esiabig a2holis
aliar, conso?i‘n‘ate."o’f’iéave vacant all i it

H H
i of employmeni, depariments,




P
{

_Discus—Sﬁon/Recommendation to Amend Section 3.08 of the Charter in
line 2 by adding the phrase “City Manager, if the post is filled or
otherwise by the” after the words--from office at any time by the and

before the words—Mayor and City Council.




G?'\g"\. V\m\

(b) Except as otherwise provided by this charier or by law, the heads of departments and other
appointed officers of the city shall be appointed solely on the basis of their respective administrative
and professional qualifications,

(€)  All appointed officers and depariment heads shall receive such compensation as prescribed by
ordinance.

(d) There shall be g head of each department or agency whe shall be ifs principal officer. Each
department head shail, subject to the direction and supervision of the Mayor or city manager, if one
is appointed, be responsible for the administration and direction of the affairs and operations of that
department head's department or agency.

(e} Al appointed officers and depariment heads under the Supervision of the Mayor, or city manager if
one is appointed, shali be nominated by the Mayor or city manager with confirmation of appointment
by the city council. Al appointed officers and department heads shall be employees at will and
subject to removal or Suspension at any time at the recommendation of the city manager or mayor,
with confirmation by the city council, unless otherwise provided by law or ordinance,

(Ord. No. 03-2010, 4-26-2010)

Sec. 3.08. - Personnel policies.

All employess sarve at will and may be removed from ofiice at any time by the Mayor and City

council unless otherwise provided by ordinance. The council shall adopt rules and regulations consistent

with this charter concerning:
(1) The method of employee selection and probationary periods of employment;

{2) The administration of any position classification and pay plan, methods of promotion and
application of service ratings thereto, and transfer of employees within the classification plan;

(3) Hours of wark, vacation, sick leave, and other leaves of absence, overtime pay, and the order
and manner in which layoff shall be effected: and

(4) Such other personnel policies as may be necessary to provide for adequate and systematic
handfing of the personnel affairs of the City of Grantville,

(1988 Ga. Laws, p. 5189; Ord. No. 02-2007, 4-23-2007; Ord. No. 03-2010, 4-26-2010)

Sec. 3.09. - Qath of office.

Before a person takes any office in the city government, he shall take, subscribe to, and file with the
city cleric the following oath or affirmation:

"I solemnly swear (or affirm) that | will support the Constitution and wiil obey the laws of the United
States and the State of Georgia; that | will, in afl respects, observe the provisions of the charier and
ordinances of the City of Grantville, and that 1 will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of
—_ .
Sec. 3.10. - Official bond.




Q‘E\bi&eé\

(b) Except as otherwise provided by this charter or by law, the heads of depariments and other
appointed officers of the city shall be appointed solely on the basis of their respective administrative
and professional qualifications.

(c) Al appointed officers and department heads shall receive such compensation as prescribed by
ordinance.

{d) There shall be a head of each depariment or agency who shall be its principal officer. Each
department head shall, subject to the direction and supervision of the Mayor or city manager, if one
is appointed, be responsible for the administration and direction of the affairs and operations of that
department head's department or agency.

(e} Al appointed officers and department heads under the supervision of the Mayor, or city manager if
one is appointed, shall be nominated by the Mayor or city manager with confirmation of appoiniment
by the city council. All appointed officers and department heads shall be employees at will and
subject to removal or suspension at any time at the recommendation of the city manager or mayor,
with confirmation by the city council, unless otherwise provided by law or ordinance.

(Ord. No. 03-2010, 4-26-2010)

Sec. 3.08. - Personnel poficies.

All employeas serve at will and may be removed from office at any time by the City Manager, if the
post is fllled, or otherwise by the Mayor and city council unless otherwise provided by ordinance. The
council shall adopt rules and regulations consistent with this charter conceming:

{1) The method of employee selection and probationary periods of employment:

(2) The administration of any position classification and pay plan, methods of promotion and
application of service ratings thereto, and transfer of employees within the classification plan;

(3) Hours of work, vacation, sick ieave, and other leaves of absence, overtime pay, and the order
and manner in which layoff shall be effected; and

(4) Such other personne! policies as may be necessary to provide for adequate and systematic
handling of the personnel affairs of the City of Grantvilie.

(1988 Ga. Laws, p. 5189; Ord. No. 02-2007, 4-23-2007; Ord. No. 03-2010, 4-26-2010)
Sec. 3.09. - Oath of office.

Before a person takes any office in the city govemment, he shall take, subscribe to, and file with the
city clerk the following oath or affirmation:

‘I solemniy swear (or affirm) that | will support the Constitution and will obey the laws of the United
States and the State of Georgia; that | will, in all respects, observe the provisions of the charter and
ordinances of the City of Grantville, and that | will faithfully discharge the duties of the office of

Sec. 3.10. - Official bond.

The mayor and every officer, agent, and employee of the city having duties embracing the receipt,
disbursement, custody or handling of money, and other officers and employees, as may be required by
ordinance, shall give a fidelity bond or faithful performance bond, as provided by ordinance, with some
surety company authorized to do business in the State of Georgia, as surety, in such amount as shall be
prescribed by ordinance, all such bonds and sureties hereto shall be subject to approval by the counci.
The costs of such bonds shall be paid by the city. All such bonds shall be kept in the custody of the city




APPLICATION NO. EFFECTIVE DATE DEPARTMENT PROGRAM
FY20 Oct. 1,2019 4293201010 1461801
- SUBCLASS NO ACCOUNT NO DUNS NO IDENTIFICATION
315 707012 069223840
STATE OF GA Fand FUND SOURCE TOTAL GRANT AMOUNT
AMOUNT 10100 01000 $5000.00
$5000.00

¢
5,

S

FUNDING SOURCE: x STATE money only FEDERAL money only FEDERAL & STATE money

GEORGIA COUNCIL FOR THE ARTS
VIBRANT COMMUNITIES GRANT AGREEMENT FY20

START DATE: Oct. 1,2019
END DATE: June 1, 2020
COUNTY OF FULTON

GRANT AMOUNT: $5000.00
PROGRAM: 1461801
STATE OF GEORGIA

This Agreement, made and entered into by and between the Georgia Department of Economic
Development, a department of State government of Georgia, on behalf of Georgia Council for the Arts,
(Collectively referred to as “GDEcD” or “GCA” , as Party of the First Part, and

City of Grantville

123 LaGrange Street
P.O. Box 160
Grantville, GA 30220

As Party of the Second Part (hereinafter called the Recipient). GCA and Recipient are collectively “the Parties™.
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the mission of Georgia Council for the Arts (“GCA”) is to cultivate the growth of vibrant,
thriving Georgia communities through the arts; and

WHEREAS, GCA goals include using the arts to promote Georgia’s economic growth, to support strong
connections between artists, arts organizations and the public resulting in community connections and an
improved quality of life; to act as a catalyst for increased public awareness of the value of the arts and of Georgia’s
rich cultural heritage; and to invest in the sustainability and advancement of Georgia’s creative sector; and

WHEREAS, GCA provides grant funding to eligible local governments and private non-profit
organizations located within the state who have submitted an application prior to the respective submission
deadline and whose application best meets GCA’s goals; and

WHEREAS, based upon Recipient's Application for the FY20 Vibrant Communities Grant
"Application"), GCA has determined that Recipient is an eligible applicant as defined in GCA's FY20 Vibrant

‘Communities Grant Guidelines. Although the Application is not attached herewith, Recipient acknowledges that

GCA has relied on the representations in the Application to determine Recipient's eligibility;




WHEREAS, based upon the Application, GCA has determined that Recipient meets all eligibility
requirements as set forth in the Guidelines; and

WHEREAS, the Georgia Department of Economic Development is authorized and empowered to enter
into Agreements with individuals, organizations and institations for cooperative endeavors furthering the
objectives of GCA.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits to be derived from the cultural and
educational advantages to the citizens of the State of Georgia, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES PROVIDED BY RECIPIENT
L1 Recipient agrees to fulfill the project set forth in its application narrative.

1.2 Recipient agrees to adhere to the following schedule and deliverables:

~ Title and description: Welcome to Grantville

~ Date: Begin work, October 21, 2019, and completed by May 28, 2020

~ Location: Rochélle Jabaley, 1 Main Street, P.O. Box 385, Grantville, GA 30220

~ Artists: John W. Christian Studio--John is an avid supporter of the arts. John's goal is to create great
art that will last for generations. In the past 30 years, he has designed art centers, live theaters, and
studios in eleven cities with fifteen locations in six counties in Georgia. As a state-leading mural artist,
John has painted murals in small towns and cities all over Georgia. His focus is outside public murals
that have a culture and historic theme to it. John is an avid historian and loves to take part in preserving
a little slice of history with each mural. Plans are to include the City of Grantville Mural in the
statewide arts collection of Go Georgia Arts located in the Atlanta airport area in the city of Hapeville,
Ga. The subject of the City of Grantville's mural will be painted on a 100 plus-year-old historic building
in the historic Grantville downtown area. The mural will be the welcome mural to the City. The
completed painting will have a tremendous economic impact and community pride for years to come.
The location of the mural is next to the city park. Once completed, the mural will join the Georgia Mural
Trail stamp collection. :

The total number of participates: 1 lead artist and a total of in-kind hours for prepping the wall and
painting the topcoat and building grounds around the wall are estimated at 50 hours.

The total number of audience/participants are 3,000, plus tourist per year.

1.3 Recipient agrees to provide a .50:1 cash match to the award amount. Matching funds must be received by June
1, 2020. Failure to produce the proposed cash match results in cancellation of the unmatched portion of the
award. In-kind contributions of goods, setvices, or space are not allowed as a match.

14 GCA agrees to pay Recipient the amount shown on Page One of this Agreement and Recipient agrees to
apply the full amount to its undertaking,




TN

1.5 Atany time during the term of this Agreement should there be any discrepancies between Recipient’s actual

31

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

T

performance and the Application’s goals or scope of work, Recipient must immediately contact GCA for
adjustments to this Agreement.

ADHERENCE TO LAWS

GCA expects all grant recipients to adhere to the standards set forth by our partner agency, The National
Endowment for the Arts. However, if the grant award is funded wholly or partially with federal funds
issued to GCA through the National Endowment for the Axts as indicated on page one of this contract, then
the use of such funds is governed by federal regulations, including but not limited to the General Terms and
Conditions for Partnership Agreements for National Endowment for the Arts Awards found at Appendix
A and the financial regulations at 2 C.F.R. § 200 et seq. Recipient represents and warrants that that it will
adhere to and abide by all applicable federal and state laws and regulations in the performance of this
Agreement, including the provisions of Appendix A (if a licable based upon the use of federal
funding), which are incorporated into this Agreement as if set out fully herein,

ADHERENCE TQ GRANT GUIDELINES

Recipient agrees to adhere to any additional requirements contained within the applicable GCA grant
guidelines which can be found at hitn:/oaaris.ora/ what-we-do/grants/vibrant-communities-grant/,

RECORD RETENTION

Financial records, supporting documents, and statistical records must be retained for a period of three (3)
years from the date of submission of the final report. Exceptions include if litigation, claim, or audit is
started before the expiration of the three-year period, or if GCA notifies you in writing to extend the
retention period.

Standards for Documentation of Personnel Expenses (2 C.F.R. § 200.430(3i)(1)). Charges to awards for
salaries and wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work performed. General Terms &
Conditions for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to Organizations must support these costs for both the
Federal funds and cost share or matching requirements. GCA may require personnel activity reports or
equivalent documentation if necessary (2 C.F.R. § 200.430(31)(8)).

Records for equipment must be retained for three (3) years after final disposition (2 C.F.R. § 200.333(c)).

Access to Federal award information: During the period of performance and the subsequent retention
period, the NEA's Inspector General, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of its authorized
representatives has the right of access to any documents, papets, or other records which are pertinent to the
Federal award, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The right also includes
timely and reasonable access to your personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such
documents. The rights of access in this paragraph are not limited to the required retention period, but last
as long as records are retained (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Federal award-related information should be collected
and stored in open and machine-readable formats whenever practicable (2 C.F.R. § 200.335). In addition,
restrictions on public access are generally limited to protected personally identifiable information (PPII)
and other FOIA and applicable exemptions (2 C.F.R. § 200.337).

-3-




5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

EVALUATION

Recipient will provide for GCA a Final Report and Final Request for Reimbursement. The final report
form, directions on how to file and specified deadlines can all be found on wwwv.gaaris.ors. All grant final
reports are due within 30 days of the completion of the project.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ARTS SUPPORT

GCA requires all Recipients to recognize GCA in all materials, publications, and programs that are
supported by state funds and in which other funders are credited. This includes programs, newsletters,
brochures, fliers, ads, calendars, posters, press releases, films, videotapes, websites and all elecironic
transmissions. Note: any organization receiving operating support funding (Partner Grant) must provide
this recognition for the entirety of the fiscal year of funding. The GCA logo must be reproduced in the
same size and proportion as that of other sponsors. It must be reproduced as it is provided, without
alteration. For additional information about GCA credit and to access the logo, review
http://gaarts. org/images/FDFs/pea%20brandstandards. pdf,

If there is no printed material associated with a program, oral credit must be given. The statement below
must be provided before the event or performance, and during any radio broadcast or audiotape for the
hearing impaired.

"This program is supported in part by Georgia Council for the Arts through the appropriations of the
Georgia General Assembly. Georgia Council for the Arts also receives support Jrom its partner agency -
the National Endowment for the Arts."

GCA reserves the right to change the language of the required acknowledgement of Arts Endowment
support, as well as the right to disallow the use of our logo and acknowledgement of our support.

Acknowledgment of the National Endowment for the Arts must also be prominently displayed in all
materials and announcements for NEA funded projects. For print materials, use the NEA's current logo
whenever possible along with the following phrase: "This project is supported in part by an award from the
National Endowment for the Arts" GCA encourages you to include "To find out more about how National
Endowment for the Arts grants impact individuals and communities, visit ww.arts.gov." For radio or
television broadcast, GCA requires the following voice-over language: "This project is supported in part by
an award from the National Endowment for the Arts. On the web at arts dot gov." For television broadcast,
display of the Arts Endowment logo and web address is required.

IMMIGRATION ACT VERIFICATION PROCESS
Recipient agrees to comply with the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of

1996, 8 U.S.C. §§ 1601-1646, (“PRWORA™), enacted by Congress to regulate the receipt of “public
benefits” by aliens, and the Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act (“GSICA™), O.C.G.A. § 50-




=,

L

12

7.2.1

7.2.2

7.2.3

8.1

8.2

8.3

36-1 et seq. Where Recipient is an organization, GCA shall verify the lawful presence of the individual
who has signed the Application.

Prior to any funds being delivered to Recipient, Recipient shall produce the following documents to GCA.

A document issued by a state or federal jurisdiction or recognized by the United States government and
that is verifiable by federal or state law enforcement, intelligence, or homeland security agencies that
contains a photograph of the bearer or lists sufficient identifying information regarding the bearer, such
as name, date of birth, gender, height, eye color, and address to enable the identification of the bearer. A
list of all acceptable documents can be found on the website of the Georgia Department of Law at
hitp://lavy.ga. gov/immigration-renorts.

If the Recipient cannot produce a document that satisfies Paragraph A, Recipient must submit an affidavit
that Recipient is a United States citizen or legal permanent resident 18 years of age or older; or an affidavit
that Recipient is a qualified alien or nonimmigrant under the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, is
18 years of age or older, is lawfully present in the United States, and provides the Recipient’s alien number
issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal immigration agency. Form affidavits are
accessible on the website of the Georgia Department of Audits and Accounts at
http:/ferww.audits.oa, cov/INALGAD/section 3 affidavits, himl,

If the funds received under this Grant Agreement will be distributed to individuals or other corporations
as sub-recipients, Recipient is responsible for verifying the eligibility of any pass-through recipient under
the procedures required under the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of
1996, 8 U.S.C. §§ 1601-1646, (“PRWORA”™) and the Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance Act.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND LIABILITIES

GDEcD, GCA, and the State of Georgia, and their respective officers, employees and directors, assigns and
attorneys, assume no liability for damages or injuries arising out of this Agreement or any addendum
thereto, and the responsibilities and obligations of GDEcD under the Agreement are limited 1o providing
not more than the total grant as set forth in this Agreement.

Recipient agrees to indemnify GDEcD, GCA and the State of Georgia, and their respective officers,
employees and directors, assigns and attorneys, from any and all known and unknown damages, legal and
equitable claims of every kind and nature - in tort, Agreement, federal law, state law, constitutional law,
statute and otherwise, known and unknown -- attorney’s fees, costs and expenses of litigation, which
GDEcD, GCA and the State of Georgia may now have or which may hereafter accrue on account of or in
any way arising out of this Agreement or the administration, planning, preparation, development,
conducting, and execution of this Agreement. This provision shall not apply to state or local units of
governments or instrumentalities thereof which are prohibited from entering into indemnification
agreements under Georgia law.

Recipient agrees to administer, plan, prepare, develop, conduct and execute the Scope of Services described

in accordance with all the terms, conditions, and Jimitations set forth herein. Recipient agrees that no
portion of these grant funds shall be utilized for the following expenses:

-5-




8.4

9.1

9.2

2.3

9.4

¢ Capital Expenditures/Equipment, which are permanent fixtures or equipment with a useful life of over
one year that cost more than $5,000. This included:
o Buildings or real estate
© Renovations or improvements involving structural changes
o Roads, driveways, parking lots or projects/repairs
o Permanent or generally immobile equipment
Fundraising event expenses
Programming outside of Georgja
Tuition for college/university study
Scholarships, prizes, or endowment funds
Debt and interest associated with capital expenditures
Depreciation
Bad debt
Alcohol
Entertainment expenses, such as receptions, refreshments, staff or cast parties, staff awards, flowers,
etc.
Late registration fees for conferences
Fees paid to lobbyists
Travel and accommodation expenses that are over the rate allowed by the state of Georgia (see
hhtp://gsa.gov/portal/category/100120 for a breakdown of travel rates)
® Any expenses labeled as miscellaneous, other, additional expenses, discretionary expenses, slush fund,
ete.

e & & o o 9 o 9 @

In the execution of this Agreement, Recipient agrees to refrain from political activities, including
endorsement of any political candidate or party, use of machinery, equipment, postage, stationary, or
personnel on behalf of any candidate or any question of public policy subject to a referendum, or the display
of political posters, stickers, or other printed material.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other part
or provision of this Agreement.

Waiver. A waiver by GDEcD or GCA of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be
construed to be either a waiver of its rights regarding any succeeding breach of any such provision or a
waiver of the provision itself,

Assignment. Recipient shall not assign all or any part of the rights or obligations under this Agreement
without the prior written consent of GCA, which may be withheld in GCA’s sole discretion. Any permitted
assignment shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the Parties’ successors and assigns.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous proposals, both oral and written, negotiations,
representations, commitments, writings and all other communications between the Parties. This Agreement
may not be modified except by an instrument in writing signed by the Parties.

-6-




9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Georgia, without reference to its conflicts of law’s provisions. Any action at law, suit
in equity, or other judicial proceeding for the enforcement of this Agreement or any provision thereof shall
take place in the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia. The Parties hereby consent to the personal
jurisdiction of the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia in any dispute arising from or relating to this
Agreement.

Relationship of the Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed as creating
a joint venture or partnership between GDEcD/GCA and Recipient. No Party, by virtue of this Agreement,
is authorized as an agent, employee or legal representative of the other except as specifically set forth herein.

Representation of Authority. Each individual executing this Agreement below represents that he or she has
full authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party.

Boycott of Israel. Recipient certifies that it is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the Term of this
Agreement not to engage in a boycott of Israel, as defined in O.C.G.A. §50-5-85.

Termination. GCA may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving written notice to the Recipient of
such termination and specifying the effective date thereof.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLLOWING PAGE]




o

_ IN WITNESS THEREOF, the undersi

‘Agreement,

RECIPIENT

gned do hereby accept the terms and conditions as set forth in the above

GEORGIA COUNCIL FOR THE ARTS

Authorizing Official Signature

Typed Name:

Executive Director

Date:

Title & Date:

FEIN:

DUNS#:




